
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE
OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME
TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MAY 23, 2017 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of a Recognition Award to Dennis Davis, Lee
Kornegay Intermediate School student, for representing Gila
County at the Arizona State Spelling Bee on March 25,
2017.   

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement between the Gila County
Sheriff's Office and Graham County Sheriff's Office for
emergency 9-1-1 call management in the event
of catastrophic failure in either Public Safety Answering
Point for three one-year periods subject to and contingent
on an annual review from the effective date (May 23, 2017)
affirming renewal of each yearly period.  (Debra Williams)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's
Office electronic submission of a federal fiscal year 2018
DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement Overtime Grant
Application in the amount of $51,145 submitted to the
Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety.  (Mike
Johnson)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's



C.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's
Office electronic submission of a federal fiscal year 2018
Speed Enforcement Grant Application in the amount of
$16,535 submitted to the Arizona Governor's Office of
Highway Safety; adopt Resolution No. 17-05-05; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the Resolution
Certification, both of which are a part of the Grant
Application.  (Mike Johnson)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's
Office electronic submission of a federal fiscal year 2018
Portable Breath Testing Device Grant Application in the
amount of $2,778.98 submitted to the Arizona Governor's
Office of Highway Safety.  (Mike Johnson)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's
Office electronic submission of a fiscal year 2018 Drug,
Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Application in the
amount of $691,228 (25% match requirement) submitted to
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission to renew grant
funding that will be used for the salaries and benefits of the
Gila County Sheriff's Office Drug, Gang and Violent Crimes
Task Force.   (Travis Baxley)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County Justice
Center to house and treat detained juveniles for the period
January 4, 2017, through January 4, 2018, with automatic
one-year renewals up to ten years per Arizona Revised
Statute § 11-952 (J) . (James Menlove/Steve Lessard) 

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
6 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1 - Forensic Center
Facility for Gila County Medical Examiner between Gila
County and Messinger Mortuary & Chapel, Inc. to increase
the original contract amount from $42,000 to $88,000 for
the remaining contract term beginning October 14, 2016,
through October 13, 2017.  (James Menlove)



 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of revised Public Works Division Policy No. ENG
03-03 - Guidelines to Primitive Roads.

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services
Contract No. 041515-5 between the Superior Court in Gila
County and Fountain Hills Law Firm to extend the contract
term for an additional one-year period, from July 1, 2017,
to June 30, 2018; increase the contract amount by an
additional $1,000 for the contract term of July 1, 2016, to
June 30, 2017; increase the contract amount by an
additional $6,000 for the contract term of July 1, 2017, to
June 30, 2018; and add statutorily required language to the
contract.

 

C.   Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit
Claim Deed for the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter
sale of Assessor's tax parcel number 102-31-013-G
to Douglas James Tucker.

 

D.   Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit
Claim Deed for the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter
sale of Assessor's tax parcel number 208-02-158-B-1 to
David and Bonnie Adams.

 

E.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application
submitted by the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of
Pine, Arizona, to serve liquor at a fund-raising event on
October 14, 2017, at the Library.

 

F.   Acknowledge the resignation of Travis Williams from the



F.   Acknowledge the resignation of Travis Williams from the
Gila County Board of Adjustment; appoint Bill Marshall to
fulfill Mr. Williams' unexpired term of office through
December 31, 2018; and appoint Terry Otts to fill a vacancy
for the term of office ending December 31, 2020. 

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the April 2017 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the April 2017 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

I.   Approval of the May 9, 2017, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

 

J.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have
been approved by the County Manager for the weeks
of April 10, 2017, through April April 14, 2017; and April
17, 2017, through April 21, 2017; and April 24, 2017
through April 28, 2017.

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.  



6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.
THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)
THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   
ARF-4302     Presentation     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Nick Montague, Chief Deputy 
Submitted By: Christine Lopez, Administrative Assistant
Department: School Superintendent's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation of a Recognition Award to Dennis Davis by Roy A. Sandoval,
Gila County School Superintendent.

Background Information
Dennis Davis, a sixth grade student from Lee Kornegay Intermediate
School in Miami, is being recognized for representing Gila County at the
Arizona Educational Foundation's Arizona State Spelling Bee on March
25, 2017.  The Arizona State Spelling Bee is a yearly competition that
brought the top spellers from each county to compete at the state
competition on March 25, 2017.  Dennis finished in eighth place out of 26
students at the Arizona State Spelling Bee by correctly spelling the words
pangolin, exuberant, protocol, terrapin, mikado, sansei, renaissance,
scherzo, inflict and unscripted.

On February 23, 2017, Dennis competed against 24 students from Gila
County schools to win first place in the Gila County Spelling Bee which
allowed him to advance to the Arizona State Spelling Bee.

We are honored to publicly recognize Dennis on his accomplishments.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of a Recognition Award to Dennis Davis, Lee Kornegay



Presentation of a Recognition Award to Dennis Davis, Lee Kornegay
Intermediate School student, for representing Gila County at the Arizona
State Spelling Bee on March 25, 2017.   

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
ARF-4239   Regular Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Debra Williams, 911 Coordinator 
Submitted By: Debra Williams, 911 Coordinator
Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County Sheriff's Office and
Graham County Sheriff's Office for emergency 9-1-1 call management
in the event of catastrophic failure in either Public Safety Answering Point.

Background Information
As part of the planned closure of the 9-1-1 dispatch center in Payson last
year, Sheriff Shepherd authorized development of a plan for emergency
9-1-1 call management in case of a catastrophic failure in the Globe 9-1-1
regional communication center.

Evaluation
As part of a regional PSAP managers working group, the Graham County
Sheriff's Office had expressed a desire to partner with a staffed PSAP for
emergency 9-1-1 call management and dispatch services, as their
unmanned backup was in need of technology upgrades to remain a
reliable redundancy.  With this in mind, the Gila County 9-1-1
Coordinator and the Graham County 9-1-1 Coordinator worked with our
mutual 9-1-1 service provider, CenturyLink, to verify that 9-1-1 call traffic
could be re-routed from one PSAP to the other.  Upon receiving
confirmation a verbal agreement was made for mutual aid, with the
understanding that an official document would be put in place to
formalize the agreement.

Conclusion
This Intergovernmental Agreement formalizes the regional partnership
between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Graham County Sheriff's
Office for emergency 9-1-1 call management in the event of catastrophic
failure in either Public Safety Answering Point.  A copy of the fully signed
and executed IGA will be integrated into each county 9-1-1 Service Plan.

Recommendation



The Sheriff's Office 9-1-1 Coordinator recommends the Board of
Supervisors authorize Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd's signature on the
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County Sheriff's Office and
Graham County Sheriff's Office for emergency 9-1-1 call management
in the event of catastrophic failure in either Public Safety Answering Point.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental
Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and Graham County
Sheriff's Office for emergency 9-1-1 call management in the event
of catastrophic failure in either Public Safety Answering Point for three
one-year periods subject to and contingent on an annual review from the
effective date (May 23, 2017) affirming renewal of each yearly period.  
(Debra Williams)

Attachments
IGA-Gila County Sheriff's Office and Graham County Sheriff's Office
Approval as to Form











 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-4322   Regular Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2018 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2017
through September 30,
2018

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety FFY 2018 GOHS
DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement Overtime Grant Application.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is working with a limited overtime budget
and short staffing. In order for Sheriff's Deputies to participate in DUI
(driving under the influence)/impaired driving details, overtime funding is
needed. Due to the short notice to submit a grant application, the Gila
County Sheriff's Office electronically submitted the FFY (federal fiscal
year) 2018 GOHS (Governor's Office of Highway Safety) DUI/Impaired
Driving Enforcement Overtime Grant Application on March 14, 2017.

Evaluation
If a grant is awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office, the funding will
be utilized for overtime funding related to DUI/Impaired Driving
enforcement details throughout Gila County.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting assistance from the GOHS
overtime funding in the amount of $51,145 of which $36,532 is personnel
and $14,613 is ERE to enhance DUI enforcement throughout Gila County.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of



Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the electronic submission of a grant application to
the Governor's Office of Highway Safety on March 14, 2017, in the
amount of $51,145 for a performance period of October 1, 2017, through
September 30, 2018.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's Office electronic
submission of a federal fiscal year 2018 DUI/Impaired Driving
Enforcement Overtime Grant Application in the amount of $51,145
submitted to the Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety.  (Mike
Johnson)

Attachments
FFY2018 DUI/ImpairedDriving Enforcement Overtime Grant
Application
Quarterly Overtime Schedule



































   
ARF-4267   Regular Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY18 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2017
through September 30,
2018

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety FFY 2018 Speed Enforcement
Grant Application.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is working with outdated and non
serviceable speed enforcement equipment. In order for the Deputies to
effectively do speed enforcement this equipment is needed. Due to the
short notice to submit a grant application, the Gila County Sheriff's Office
electronically submitted the FFY 2018 Speed Enforcement Grant
Application on March 14, 2017.

Evaluation
If a grant is awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office, the acquisition
and use of these radars will greatly enhance the ability of the Sheriff's
Office Deputies in the field to effectively enforce speed details and speed
enforcement during their patrol duties.  Notification was also provided to
the Gila County Sheriff's Office that a resolution passed and adopted by
the Board of Supervisors needs to be submitted with the application, and
a Certification form which states that the Resolution was passed and
adopted by the Board of Supervisors.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting assistance from the Arizona



The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting assistance from the Arizona
Governor's Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) to purchase (10) Dual
Antenna Radar Units for a total amount of $16,535. Per County process,
the Sheriff's Office is requesting the Board of Supervisors' authorization
for its submittal of the grant application to include Resolution
No. 17-05-05 and a Resolution Certification form.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the electronic submission of a grant application
which includes Resolution No. 17-05-05 and the Certification form for the
speed enforcement grant application to the Arizona Governor's Office of
Highway Safety on March 14, 2017, in the amount of $16,535 for a
performance period of October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's Office electronic
submission of a federal fiscal year 2018 Speed Enforcement Grant
Application in the amount of $16,535 submitted to the Arizona Governor's
Office of Highway Safety; adopt Resolution No. 17-05-05; and authorize
the Chairman's signature on the Resolution Certification, both of which
are a part of the Grant Application.  (Mike Johnson)

Attachments
Resolution No. 17-05-05
Resolution Certification 
FFY2018 GOHS Speed Enforcement Grant Application
Quote
County Attorney's Comments



 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-05-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 

ARIZONA, PERTAINING TO THE SUBMISSION OF PROJECTS FOR 

CONSIDERATION IN ARIZONA’S FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR (FFY) 2018 

HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN.  

 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety is seeking proposals from state and local 

agencies for projects relating to all aspects of highway safety; and 

 

WHEREAS, Gila County, through the Gila County Sheriff’s Office, is interested in submitting 

projects to be considered for funding in the form of reimbursable grants from the National Highway 

Traffic Safety Administration;    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona as 

follows: 

 

1. THAT approval of the submission of projects for consideration in Arizona’s FFY 2018 

Highway Safety Plan is granted. 

 

2. THAT Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd is appointed agent for Gila County to conduct all negotiations 

and to execute and submit all documents and any other necessary or desirable instruments in 

connection with such grant. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona, this 23
rd

 day of 

May 2017. 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard    Tommie Cline Martin, Chairman 

Clerk of the Board           

 

Approved as to form: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton                                                                                  

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief                                                                                    



 
 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution Number 17-05-05 was duly passed and 

adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 

23
rd

 day of May, 2017, and that a quorum was present at the meeting. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard    Tommie Cline Martin, Chairman 

Clerk of the Board     Gila County Board of Supervisors   

   

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton                                                                                  

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief                                                                                    



























Quotation

Page 1 of 2

Date

To...

March 06, 2017

LT  TIM  SCOTT
GILA CO SHERIFF'S OFFICE

PO BOX 311
1100 SOUTH ST

GLOBE AZ  85502-0311

Quote # 1031986414135PC
Terms

Phone

Fax

Net 30

928-425-5674

June 04, 2017

Qty Product Description UnitPrice SubTotal

928-425-4449
This Quote Expires on

The following pricing represents AZ State contract  / Shipping is included

 10 Eagle II dual antenna, Ka-Band DCM w/TruTrak $1,521.06 $15,210.60

 10 8.9% Sales Tax $132.44 $1,324.40

$16,535.00Total

Signature

Toll Free 800-4KUSTOM  (800-458-7866) 

Interested in a lease-to-own option? Contact Kustom Signals today at 800-458-7866 or cremy@kustomsignals.com for a detailed quote and to 

lock in a rate. Benefits of Leasing:

• Flexible repayment terms structured to meet your budget

• Significantly faster, less complicated and less expensive than

other forms of public debt

• 100% financing and immediate ownership of equipment

• Municipal leasing is cash flow friendly        

If applicable sales tax not included, sales and/or freight could be subject to current 

rates based on your State, County, or City requirements. Seller may charge Buyer a 

25% restocking fee.



KUSTOM SIGNALS, INC.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
K U ST O M  SIG N A L S, IN C .  

T ER M S A N D  C O N D ITIO N S  

1. A PP L IC A B IL I TY .  U n les s o th erw ise s pecified  in  a 
w ritten  bid , q u ote o r co n tra ct, th e fo llow in g terms  an d  con d ition s 
sh all ap p ly. 

2. P R IC E S AN D  T A X E S.  P rices will b e K u sto m 
S ign als, In c.’s (“Seller”) p rices in  effect on  th e d ate a p u rch ase 
o rd er is accep ted  b y S elle r, an d Seller m ay ch an ge  its p rices  a t 
an y tim e, in  its s ole d is cretion .  All p rices  will b e F.O.B . 
C h an ute, Kan s as , an d n et o f an y d u ties, s ales , u se or similar 
tax es, fee s or ass ess men ts, and  d o n ot inclu d e s hip p ing , 
p ack agin g  or an y in su ran ce costs , all of wh ich  are  B uy er’s 
resp on s ibility.  

3. P AY M E N T .  U n les s oth erwise  p ro vid ed  on  th e face of 
th e in vo ice, p aym en t is  d u e 30  da y s afte r inv oic e d a te  in U S 
d ollars. P artial pay men ts  are  n ot p e rmitted  u nles s au th orized  in 
w ritin g. P artial p aym en ts will b e treated  as n on -p ay men t. Ea ch  
in vo ice is in de p en d en t from  sh ipp in g s eq u en ce an d  d ispu tes 
rela tin g  to o the r in vo ices. Failu re to  p ay an  in vo ice w ithin  3 0 
d ays  w ill b e co n sid ered  a d efau lt.  

4. D E L I VE R Y  AN D  P E RFO R M AN C E . D eliv ery  d ates 
are ap prox im ate.  S eller d is claim s all liab ility  for late or partia l 
d elivery.  S eller m ay d eliv er in  s u ch  lots  an d at s u ch  tim es as  is 
con ven ien t for S eller.  

5. L O S S IN  T R A N SI T.  R isk  o f lo ss  w ill p ass  to  B u yer 
u p on  d eliv ery  of th e g o od s to th e carrier.  In case of b reak ag e o r 
los s in tran sit, B u yer w ill h av e n o tation  of sa me mad e on  exp en se 
b ill b efore p ayin g  freig h t.  Se ller ma y re ject claim s for sh o rtag es 
n ot ma de with in 1 5 da ys of B u yer’s  receip t o f the  g oo d s.  

6. T E R M IN AT IO N , RE ST O CK IN G  C H AR G E S .   
B u ye rm ay te rm in ate  this  p urch ase ord er fo r its  co n ven ien ce, in 
w h ole or in  p art, b y w ritten, fax ed  or teleg ra ph ic n otice a t an y 
time. If B u yer term ina tes  th is pu rch as e ord er for co nv en ien ce, 
B u ye r will b e liab le to  S elle r fo r Seller’s  reas on ab le cos ts 
in cu rred  in the pe rforman ce of th is pu rch as e o rd er tha t Seller 
can n ot m itig ate. U n les s o therwis e ag reed  u p on  in ad v an ce in 
w ritin g b y S eller, Seller m ay ch arge B u yer a 2 5 % restock in g fee, 
if: (a) u p o n ap p rov al b y S eller, th e B u ye r retu rns  an y n o n-
d efe ctiv e go od s  co vered  b y th is inv o ice; o r (b ) p rior to  sh ip men t, 
b u t a fter the g o od s  are pro d uced  b y Seller, B uy er ca ncels  the 
o rd er for th e s u bject g o od s.  

7. W A R RA N T Y .  S eller's w arran ty is p rov id ed 
se parately . 

8. L I M IT A T IO N O F L IA B ILI TY .  S ELLER  IS N OT  
LIAB LE  F O R  AN Y C O N SEQ U EN T IA L, IN D IR EC T, O R  
IN C ID E NT A L D A M A GE S, O R  A N Y  LO S T P R O F ITS  O R  
LO ST  S AV ING S , EV EN  IF  A  SE LLE R  R EP R ES EN TA TIVE  
H AS  B EE N  AD V ISED  OF  T HE  P OS S IB IL ITY  O F  S UC H  
LO SS , D AM AG ES , C LA IM S  O R  C OS TS , N O R  IS  S ELLE R  
LIAB LE  F O R  AN Y C L AIM  B Y  AN Y TH IR D  P AR TY .  
S ELLE R ’S  A GG R E G ATE  LIA B IL ITY  U N D ER  O R  IN  
C O N NE C TIO N  W ITH  T H IS PU R C H A SE  OR DE R  IS  
LIM ITE D TO  TH E AM O U N T PA ID F OR  TH E G O OD S .  

9 . IN D E M N IFIC A T IO N .  B u yer w ill in d emn ify, d efen d  
a nd  h old  Seller h arm less  fro m all lo ss es , d am ag es, liab ilities an d  
co sts , in clu d in g attorn eys ' fee s, incu rred  or su stain ed  by  Seller a s 
a  res ult of an y th ird  p arty cla im  m ad e ag ain st Seller, in clud in g a 
claim  b y a cu sto mer o f B u ye r, arisin g from  its n eglig ent, 
reck less, w illfu l, or in ten tion al actio n s in  marketin g a nd  res ellin g  
th e go od s .   

10.  E X PO RT  R U L E S.  Ex p o rts an d  re-e xp o rts  o f the  
g o ods  ma y b e su b ject to  U n ited  States ex p o rt co n tro ls an d  
s an ctio n s ad min istered  b y th e U .S . D ep artm en t o f C om me rce  
B u reau  o f In du s try  an d  S ecu rity u n d er its Exp o rt Ad m inistratio n  
R e gu lation s  ("EA R "). B u yer sh all com p ly w ith  all laws , ru les  an d  
reg u latio n s ap plicable to  th e exp o rt or re -ex p o rt of g o od s  
in clu din g  b u t n o t limited  to EA R  w h ich  in clu d es, a mo ng  oth er 
th in gs , s creen in g p o te ntial tran saction s  aga in st th e U.S. 
G o v ern m ent's  (i) list o f p roh ib ited  en d  u sers, an d  (ii) lis t of 
p ro hib ite d  co u n tries. B u yer rep res en ts  an d w arran ts th at (i) it ha s 
n o t b een  ch arged  with , co n victed  o f, o r p en alized  for, an y  
v iola tion  o f E AR  or a n y s tatute referen ced  in  E AR  § 7 6 6.2 5, an d  
(ii) it h as n ot b een  n otifie d b y an y go v ern men t o fficial of 
co m pe tent a u th o rity tha t it is u n d er in v estiga tion  for an y  v iolatio n  
o f E AR  or a n y s tatu te referen ce d  in EA R  § 7 6 6.2 5.   

11.  M IS C E L L AN E O US .  T hes e terms a nd  con d ition s, 
to ge the r w ith  a n y oth er w ritten  ag reem ent betw een  B u yer an d  
S eller, if an y: (i) are th e ex clusiv e s ta temen ts o f th e  p arties wit h  
resp ect to  th e s ub ject ma tter an d  su p ersed es  an y p rior o r 
co n temp o ran eo u s co mm u n ica tion s; (ii) may n ot b e ame nd ed  
e xcep t in w ritin g  ex ecu ted  b y th e p arties  an d  w ill p rev ail in  an y  
cas e w h ere  th e term s of B u yer’s pu rch a se o rd er o r o ther 
co m mu n ication  are in con s istent; (iii) will be  in terp rete d an d  
e nforced  in  acco rd an ce w ith  th e laws  o f th e State of K an sas, 
w ith o ut g ivin g  effe ct to  prin ciples o f co n flicts o f law . T h es e 
te rms  an d co n d ition s are: (1 ) so lely fo r th e b en efit o f th e p arties, 
a nd  n o p rov ision  o f th ese term s an d  co n d itio n s will be  d eeme d to  
co n fer u p on  an y oth er p ers on  an y rem ed y, cla im, liability, 
reimb u rs em en t, cau se of action  or o th er rig h t. Each  p arty  
co n sen ts to  the  ex clu sive p ers on al ju risd ictio n  of the  s ta te an d  
fed eral cou rts lo cate d in  th e  State o f Ka ns as fo r p urp o ses of an y  
s u it, actio n  or o ther p ro ceed in g  arising  o ut o f th is A greem ent, 
w aiv es any  argu m en t that ven u e in  an y s u ch  foru m  is no t 
co n ve n ie nt an d  ag ree s th at th e v en ue of a n y litig ation  in itiated  b y  
e ith er o f the m in  con n ection  with  th is Ag re emen t will b e in either 
th e D istrict C o u rt o f Jo h ns on  C ou n ty, K an sas, or th e Un ited  
S tates District C o u rt, D istrict of K an sas . If an y  p ro vis ion  of th es e 
te rms  an d co n d itio n s is u nen fo rceab le, the remain in g p rov isio n s 
w ill rem ain in effect. N o w aive r (wh eth er b y co u rs e o f d ealin g o r 
o th erwise) is effectiv e u nles s it is m ad e in w ritin g  an d s ign ed  b y  
th e p arty to b e ch arg ed  w ith  su ch  waiv er. Un less  o th erw is e 
s p ecified  in  w ritin g, n otices  m us t be  g iven  in  w ritin g  b y  
reg istered  or certified mail, re tu rn  receipt req u ested , add re ssed  to: 

K u sto m Sig n als, In c. 
Attn :  Sa les D ept.  

9 652  Lo iret 
Len ex a, K S  6 6 2 19 



COUNTY ATTORNEY’S COMMENTS 

 

16 May 2017 

To: The Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re: Arizona Governor’s Office of Highway Safety FFY 2018 Speed Enforcement Grant Application. 

  

The Gila County Attorney’s Office cannot approve the grant application as to form.   

 The grant application contains a quote which contains a contract that would be entered into 
between the county and the vendor if the grant application were approved.  That contract lacks three 
provisions which are required to be in every governmental contract according to state law:  Notice of 
cancellation for conflict of interest under A.R.S. § 38-511, A.R.S. § 41-4401 requires three provisions 
regarding immigration, and, under A.R.S § 35-393.01, a paragraph prohibiting a boycott against Israel 
must be is required. 

 There are two other issues which would not prevent approval as to form by the office, but which 
are not advisable: The contract makes Kansas the exclusive jurisdiction for all litigation and the 
indemnity clause benefits only the vendor. 

  



   
ARF-4323   Regular Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2018 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2017
through September 30,
2018

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safeway FFY 2018 Portable Breath
Testing (PBT) Grant Application.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is working with equipment that is
outdated or are unable to provide each Deputy with a PBT device. In order
for the Deputies to effectively do DUI (driving under the influence)
enforcement, this equipment is needed. Due to the short notice to submit
a grant application, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically
submitted the FFY 2018 PBT Grant Application on March 14, 2017.

Evaluation
If a grant is awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office, the acquisition
and use of these PBT devices will greatly enhance the ability of the
Sheriff's Office Deputies in the field to effectively enforce DUI related
activities in the field and during their patrol duties.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting assistance from the Arizona
Governor's Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) to purchase (10) PBT devices
and (500) mouth pieces for a total amount of $2,778.98 to enhance DUI
enforcement throughout Gila County.

Recommendation



Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the electronic submission of the FY2018 PBT Grant
Application to the Arizona GOHS on March 14, 2017, in the amount of
$2,778.98 for a performance period of October 1, 2017, through
September 30, 2018.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's Office electronic
submission of a federal fiscal year 2018 Portable Breath Testing Device
Grant Application in the amount of $2,778.98 submitted to the Arizona
Governor's Office of Highway Safety.  (Mike Johnson)

Attachments
FFY 2018 Portable Breath Test Devices Grant Application
Quote































   
ARF-4333   Regular Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY18 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2017 through
June 30, 2018

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
FY 2018 Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Application.

Background Information
On February 24, 2017, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically
submitted the FY18 Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang
and Violent Crime Grant Application in the amount of $691,228. The
grant application had to be submitted online no later than February 24,
2017, at 3:00 p.m.

Evaluation
The deadline to electronically submit the grant application was February
24, 2017.  The Sheriff's Office completed the grant application on
February 24, 2017; therefore, there wasn't sufficient time to present the
application to the Board of Supervisors for approval before the application
deadline.

Conclusion
On February 24, 2017, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically
submitted the FY18 Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang
and Violent Crime Control Grant Application in the amount of $691,228
for a performance period of July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, to
provide salaries and employment related expenses for the Gila County
Sheriff's Drug, Gang and Violent Crimes Task Force.  Per County process,
the Sheriff's Office is requesting the Board of Supervisors' authorization
for its submittal of the grant application.



Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the electronic submission of a grant application for
the FY18 Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Violent
Crime Control Grant Application in the amount of $691,228 for a
performance period of July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, to provide
salaries and employment related expenses for the Gila County Sheriff's
Drug, Gang and Violent Crimes Task Force. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's Office electronic
submission of a fiscal year 2018 Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control
Grant Application in the amount of $691,228 (25% match requirement)
submitted to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission to renew grant
funding that will be used for the salaries and benefits of the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Drug, Gang and Violent Crimes Task Force.  (Travis
Baxley)

Attachments
Grant Application 



Application Created: 11:04 AM, 2/23/2017 

Application Submitted: 1:27 PM, 2/24/2017 

 
General Information  
 

 

ACJC Grant Program:   Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control 

  

Period Title:   FY18 Cycle 31  

  

Project Title: Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force 

  

Purpose Area:  A - Apprehension 

  

Is this a continuation 

request?   No  

  

Applicant Agency:  Agency Name:  Gila County Sheriff's Office 

Department Name:  Administration 

Federal Tax ID:  866000444 

DUNS Number:  142370761 

AFIS Vendor ID:  18660004440 

AFIS Mail Code:  400 
  

  

Participating Agencies:  
Arizona Department of Public Safety 

Gila County Attorney's Office 

Gila County Sheriff's Office 

Hayden Police Department 

Miami Police Department 

Payson Police Department 

San Carlos Apache Tribal Police Department 

San Carlos Apache Recreation and Wildlife Law Enforcement Divison 

Tonto Apache Police Department 

United States Drug Enforcement Administration 

United States Forest Service Law Enforcement Divison 

White Mountain Apache Tribal Police Department 

White Mountain Apache Tribal Game and Fish Department 
 

  

Authorized Official:   Shepherd, John A (Sheriff) 

Mailing Address:   

PO Box 311 

Globe, Arizona 85502  
 

Email:  ashepherd@gilacountyaz.gov 

Phone:  928-402-1873 

Fax:  928-425-5674  

Agency:  Gila County Sheriff's Office  

Department:  Administration  
  

  

Project Official:   Baxley , Travis W (Commander) 

Mailing Address:   

PO Box 311 

Globe, Arizona 85502  
 

Email:  tbaxley@gilacountyaz.gov 



Phone:  928-402-1873 

Fax:  928-402-1060  

Agency:  Gila County Sheriff's Office  

Department:  Task Force  
  

 

 
 
Project Narrative  
 

 

Project Mission Statement 

Response is limited to 1,500 characters, including spaces. 

 

Enter narrative below: 

 

The Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force is a Multi-Agency/Multi-Jurisdictional Unit that conducts narcotic, gang 

and violent crime investigations. Our mission is to disrupt, interdict, and dismantle such offenses in order to reduce criminal activities 

inside and outside our communities. Through city, county, state and federal inter-agency collaborations, the Task Force focuses on 

identifying and initiating investigations on violent crimes and on individuals, gangs, organizations and  cartels involved in cultivating, 

manufacturing, transporting, distribution, use and sale of marijuana, narcotic and dangerous drugs. 

Through this Multi-Agency effort, the Task Force: 

 Attains successful interdictions, apprehensions and prosecutions of subjects involved in illicit drug, gang, and violent crimes. 

 Provides training on K-9, criminal interdiction, tactical SWAT clandestine lab entry, firearms tactics, defense tactics and 

marijuana cultivation. 

 Initiates investigations, provides assistance, resources, and intelligence to all requesting agencies. 

 Partners with various community organizations and provides school and public K-9 demonstrations along with educational 

programs throughout Gila County, Pinal County, the San Carlos Apache Reservation as well as the Tonto Apache Reservation. 

The Task Force focus is to protect life, property, and the citizens within our communities and surrounding areas. 

 

 

  

 

 

Problem Statement 

Identify the problem in your community that the grant funded program will address. Be very specific and include statistical data to define 

the severity of the identified problems. Response is limited to 7,000 characters, including spaces.  

 

Enter narrative below: 

 

Problem Statement 

Limited resources  

With approximately 54,000 people Gila County covers approximately 4,760 square miles, with 56 % of Gila County being federal forest 

and state land. The sparse population has a small tax base therefore limiting resources. The terrain is comprised of both high deserts, 

remote and rugged mountain landscape. Gila County also has three tribal reservations, the San Carlos Apache, Tonto Apache and White 

Mountain Apache. These reservations encompass approximately 37% of the land mass[i]. 

Criminal Organizations 

The nexus that Gila County has to Mexico is that it is a major corridor in Arizona for illegal human and drug trafficking from its borders. 

According to the United States Drug Enforcement Administration, Arizona serves as a major distribution, hub, storage area and 

transshipment point for Mexican marijuana, methamphetamine, cocaine, and heroin being smuggled into domestic cities throughout the 

United States. Gila County has identified four (4) major drug corridor routes: U.S. Highway 60 from Phoenix through the State of New 

Mexico, U.S. Highway 70 from Lordsburg, New Mexico to Interstate 40, State Route 77 from Tucson to Interstate 40, and State Route 

87 from Phoenix to Interstate 40. Phoenix, Tucson, Lordsburg, and other metropolitan areas are in close proximity to Gila County and 

have been deemed distribution centers for Mexico, Columbia, and Asian countries [ii]. 

Gang Activity 

The Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force have seen an increase in the amount of gang activity connected back to the 



gang affiliations in Gila County. An example of this is the strong representation of outlaw motorcycle gangs such as the “Loners”, the 

“Loose Cannons”, the “Huns”, the “Hell Angels” the “Mongols” and the “Vagos” in Gila County. Intelligence shows that a “Hell 

Angels” associate has purchased property in northern Gila County as a hidden owner for the outlaw motorcycle gang. Additionally the 

“Loners” and the “Loose Cannons” members are actively being used by the “Hell Angels” to recruit new members. Intelligence also 

shows that that the “Loners” have become hidden owners in a local business in southern Gila County. Recent collaborated intelligence 

has the “Mongols” as well as the “Loose Cannons” have moved into Gila County and opened club houses along with purchasing 

property in Southern Gila County. It has been well published the outlaw motorcycle gangs are involved in distribution of illegal drugs 

and have used violence as part of the criminal enterprises [iii]. 

Another example of gang affiliation involves the collaboration of the Task Force and the Gila County Sheriff’s Office in two separate 

violent criminal investigations. These cases involved suspects from the “East Side Globe Gang” who have ties to the Mexican Mafia 

prison gang along with the “Juggalos” and “White Supremacist Prison Gangs”. We are finding that these gangs are starting to have a 

heavy presence in the Gila County area. In FY15/16 the Task Force identified (39) gang members of this affiliation, in FY16/17 (166) 

gang members of this affiliation were identified. This is an increase of 426% [iv]. 

Marijuana Cultivation Sites 

The Tonto National Forest is very conducive to the cultivation/distribution of marijuana due to its abundant water supply, elevation, vast 

remote forest lands, and dense vegetation making aerial surveillance difficult. Marijuana grow sites that we have encountered are 

generally at the bottom of steep ravines, with no direct trails that lead into the grow sites. The primary suspects found in grow sites, 

sales; distribution and smuggling are undocumented aliens which is indicative of large drug organizations/DTO inside and outside of the 

United States. Generally a language barrier is encountered when identifying the suspects. The grow sites also have a direct impact on 

public safety; suspects are known to be armed and have fired upon unsuspecting hikers, campers, hunters, and forest service personnel 

who accidentally have stumbled upon or near a grown site. Environmental issues are also a concern to the forest area due to the increased 

fire hazards from unsafe propane usage, unattended fires, destruction/cutting of forest trees and brush, the use of fertilizers and 

pesticides, processing and packing materials, and human waste/garbage. 

We’ve seen a shift from outdoor to indoor cultivation sites in rural housing areas [v]. Marijuana grows often cause extensive damage to 

the houses where they are maintained and are increasingly the causes of house fires, blown electrical transformers, and environmental 

damage. Many of these homes may ultimately be rendered uninhabitable [vi]. 

Tribal Reservation Law Enforcement 

The San Carlos Apache, Tonto Apache and White Mountain Apache Reservations pose a great challenge to law enforcement as it relates 

to the inability to enforce laws, gather intelligence on drug trafficking and gang activities, and utilization of resources to suppress 

criminal activities traveling through and into our communities. The Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force has 

collaborated with the tribal police agencies assisting and sharing case information as well as working on the indoor/outdoor marijuana 

cultivation investigations. 

Recent Trends 

Compared to last year Gila County has had an increase of seized: 

 Marijuana Plants (354%) 

 Marijuana – Pounds (354%) 

 Marijuana – Street Value (377%) 

 Cocaine (474%) 

 Drug Paraphernalia (220%) 

In addition we’ve seen a (426%) increase in Gang Members Identified. Data from the SAC Community Project for Gila County shows 

an increase from 2015 to 2016 in total drug arrests (15%), investigations resulting in drug seizures (12%) and assists leading to drug 

seizure (62%). 

More statistical data can be found in the attached Gila County Threat Assessment [vii] [viii] and the SAC Community Project Gila 

County [ix]. 

Controlled Prescription Drugs 

As a community based program, the Task Force, in a coordinated effort with the “Crossing Hospice” Care Center, tries to curtail the 

availability of pharmaceutical narcotic prescription drugs. This collaboration of taking for destruction the narcotic drugs left behind by 

deceased individuals curtails the availability of drug reaching the street. In addition the Task Force collaborates with the Gila County 

Sheriff’s Office, Globe Police Department, Payson Police Department and the United States Drug Enforcement Administration, in 

executing the “Dump the Drugs Program”. Gila County has seen a 20% increase in “Inpatient Discharges and Emergency Room Visits 

Related to Drug Dependence and Drug Abuse” during 2012 – 2014 [x]. 



[i] http://www.census.gov/quickfacts/table/PST045215/0455000,04007 

[ii] NDTA 2016.pdf 

[iii] NDTA 2016.pdf 

[iv] See Gila County Threat Assessment.pdf 

[v] Edge Report 2016.pdf 

[vi] den062216.pdf 

[vii] See Gila County Threat Assessment.pdf 

[viii] NDTA 2016.pdf 

[ix] SAC Community Data Project Gila County.pdf 

[x] ADHS Table B3 2012-2014.pdf, and ADHS Table E4 2012-2014.pdf 

                                                         

  

 

 

Project Summary 

Provide a summary of the program the ACJC grant funds will support. Include how the program addresses the problem in the 

community, what services are provided, the population served, why it is important, and how it is unique.  Response is limited to 7,000 

characters, including spaces.  

 

Enter narrative below: 

 

Task Force Program 

The Task Force is an important and unique entity within Gila County because the Task Force brings intelligence, law enforcement 

agencies, tools, and needed personnel together to complete and prosecute cases that would otherwise go uninvestigated. The Task Force 

is an aggressive entity that takes charge of investigations dealing with the enforcement of drug, gang, and violent crimes. 

Multi-Agency/Multi-Jurisdictional Unit 

The Task Force leads this effort by working with every law enforcement officer in Gila County. 

For example the Task Force: 

 Responds to the investigative needs of Departments [1] where there are insufficient criminal investigators in their agencies. 

 Conducts warrant roundups for drug and violent crime offenders [2]. 

 Coordinates criminal interdiction details of the major drug corridor routes consisting of U.S. Hwy 60 and 188 and State Routes 

70, 77 and 87[3]. 

Task Force Activities 

Interdiction 

The daily operations include north and southbound interdiction efforts dictated by actionable intelligence and focuses on arrest 

operations, prosecutions, and appropriate civil sanctions. 

Education 

Education is a key component in curbing the use and abuse of illicit drugs. The Task Force coordinates with several agencies: 

 Providing drug awareness education and K-9 demonstrations throughout Gila County, Pinal County, the San Carlos Apache 

Reservation and the Tonto Apache Reservation [4]. 

 Raising awareness of substance abuse, substance-abuse prevention, treatment programs, and programs offered through law 

enforcement along with the criminal justice system within our communities. 

 Reaching both adult and juvenile populations [5]. 

http://www.census.gov/quickfacts/table/PST045215/0455000,04007
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/SMO3WAQY/%5bvi%5d


Collecting and destroying prescription medications 

The Task Force has collaborated with the Crossing Hospice Care Center since 2011, picking up narcotic medications from patients that 

have recently passed away. In prior investigations, the Task Force found that the narcotic medications of the deceased patients were 

ending up on the streets. The Task Force is continuing the collaborative efforts in collecting and destroying the prescription medications. 

Task Force Capacity 

The Task Force is overseen by a four member Task Force board consisting of Gila County Sheriff, Director of AZ DPS, Gila County 

Attorney, and Chief of Globe PD. The Gila County Sheriff’s Office (GCSO) is the umbrella agency and handles the administrative and 

financial operations of the Task Force. It is comprised of a Task Force Commander (GCSO), a Sergeant (GCSO), four detectives (1 

Globe PD, 2 GCSO, 1 San Carlos Game and Fish) and two K-9 units (GCSO) which are based out of Globe and Payson. The Gila 

County Attorney’s Office has a prosecutor assigned to all the cases maintaining a strong working relationship. The Task Force serves an 

approximate population of 54,000 people encompassing approximately 4,760 square miles. 

Sustainability Plan 

The Task Force has developed a sustainability plan in the event of changes with financial impact to the life of the grant project. The long 

term vision of the Task Force is to branch into a larger multi-agency task force, with more federal agency partnerships, and to include an 

assigned analyst. The sustainability plan includes learning to identify new funding streams from within our collaborative partnerships to 

augment related expenses of the grant project. All practices of the Task Force are evaluated monthly, in terms of financial impact and 

importance to the program operation and its overall success. This is done to identify future improvement, and monitor budget line 

items. Personnel in the grant have received continuous training from AZ POST and other outside agencies which is critical in the 

sustainability of the grant project. 

Evidence Based 

Since 2014 the Task Force has been using a method similar to the “High Point Drug Market Intervention”, rated “Effective” by the 

National Institute of Justice [6]. High-density crime areas were identified; additional surveillance was added in these areas, identifying 

dealers in these neighborhoods. Task Force made cases against each individual by using undercover officers or confidential informants 

who made purchases from these individuals that were recorded by digital audio and video surveillance. Identified offenders were 

explained the sanctions of their offenses and the need to stop future offending. During the “Resource Delivery” the Task Force spoke 

with offenders (that were used as informants) and informed them that if they continued dealing they would be arrested immediately; 

however, if they chose to stop moving forward no punitive action would be taken against them. This let offenders know the 

consequences and know that their chances of being arrested were far greater than they had previously thought. Offenders were referred 

to services in the community to assist them in their efforts to stop dealing. Since 2014 we’ve not seen our informants arrested for drug 

related crimes. 

  

Gila County’s FY16 quarterly highlights[7]: 

 August 2015, Task Force in collaboration with Gila County Sheriff's Office, Gila County Attorney's Office, and Globe PD, 

conducted an investigation of an indoor marijuana cultivation site at a residence in Globe, AZ. A search warrant was executed 

on the residence, 2 suspects were arrested, 67 marijuana plants, 2 lbs. of processed marijuana (street value $82,800) were seized 

and the U.S DEA was informed. 

  

 February 2016, Task Force collaborated with AZ DPS during a traffic stop at milepost 268 on State Route 260. During the 

investigation, a task force K-9 conducted a drug sniff and alerted to the car. A search revealed a false compartment built into the 

back seat trunk area where 37 lbs. of marijuana were found (street value $29,600). Both were seized along with $615. 

Information from the investigation was passed on to the U.S DEA and the Albuquerque PD Narcotics Unit in NM. 

  

 February 2016, in a coordinated effort with the AZ DPS, an investigation was conducted on a residence involved in the 

distribution of methamphetamine. A search warrant was executed, and 1 suspect was arrested. During the investigation, 68.4 gr. 

methamphetamine (street value $6,840), 441 narcotic pills (street value of $13,230), 39 firearms, numerous items of drug 

paraphernalia, and $9,371 were seized. 

  

 June 2016, Task Force conducted a traffic stop on a vehicle on U.S. Hwy 60 milepost 251. Two subjects were arrested, 108.52 

gr. Methamphetamine (street value of $17,352), 3.4 gr. Heroin (street value of $3,400), and 1 vehicle were seized. The 

investigation identified a suspected supplier from Tempe, AZ and Tempe PD Narcotics Unit was informed. A suspect from 

Pinetop, AZ was identified that had picked up a large amount of methamphetamine from the 2 suspects. This information was 

passed onto the Navajo County Sheriff's Office MCAT, which led to a search warrant with 2 additional suspects being arrested. 



(65) gr. of methamphetamine and numerous items of drug paraphernalia were seized. One suspect from this investigation was 

identified as a member of the white supremacist prison and street gang. 

  

[1] Globe PD, Miami PD, Hayden PD, San Carlos Apache Tribal PD, San Carlos Apache Recreation and Wildlife Law Enforcement 

Division and Tonto Apache Tribal PD 

[2] Warrant roundups for drug and violent crime offenders: AZ DPS, GCSO, Gila County Adult and Juvenile Probation, Globe PD, 

Miami PD, Hayden PD, Payson PD, San Carlos Apache Tribal PD, San Carlos Apache Recreation and Wildlife Law Enforcement 

Division, Tonto Apache Tribal PD, U.S Forest Service and the U.S Marshall’s Office. 

[3] Conducts criminal interdiction details of the major drug corridor routes: AZ DPS, GCSO, Globe PD, Hayden PD, Miami PD, Payson 

PD, Phoenix PD, U.S DEA, U.S Forest Service, San Carlos Apache Tribal PD, San Carlos Apache Recreation and Wildlife Law 

Enforcement Division, Tonto Apache Tribal PD. 

[4] Providing drug awareness to: Community Bridges, Gila County Attorney’s Office, Boys and Girls Club, Community Civic 

Organizations, Gila County and San Carlos School Districts. 

[5] School districts, Community Bridges, Boys and Girls Clubs of America, and the AZ Youth Partnership. 

[6] High Point Drug Market Intervention.pdf 

[7] Edge Report 2016.pdf 

 

 

Project Collaboration 

Programs must demonstrate a strong collaborative effort in each of these areas: law enforcement, prosecution, service providers, 

community organizations and other social service agencies. List the public and private organizations your agency collaborates with  in 

connection with your grant (excluding participating agencies already identified in the 'General Information' section).  

 

Enter narrative below:  

 

Local Agencies 

The Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force (Task Force) coordinates any intelligence that may be conducive to 

furthering cases involving drugs, warrants and marijuana cultivation in collaboration with: 

 Apache County Sheriff’s Office 

 Apache County ACCENT 

 Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office 

 Navajo County MCAT 

 Yavapai County PANT 

The Task Force coordinates any intelligence that may be conducive to furthering cases involving drugs, and warrants in collaboration 

with: 

 Apache Junction Police Department 

 Coolidge Police Department 

 Pinal County Attorney’s Office 

The Task Force coordinates any intelligence that maybe conducive to furthering cases involving drugs, narcotic reversals, and warrants. 

Active participants in daily case investigations are: 

 Miami Police Department 

 Payson Police Department 

 Globe Police Department 

The Task Force coordinates any intelligence that maybe conducive to furthering case involving drugs, narcotic reversals, and warrants in 

collaboration with: 

 Gilbert Police Department 

 Glendale Police Department 

 Graham County Sheriff’s Office 

 Hayden Police Department 

 Mesa Police Department 

 Navajo County Sheriff’s Office 

../../tbaxley/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/THPK1J0H/%5b7%5d


 Pima County Sheriff’s Department 

 Pinal County Sheriff’s Office 

 Safford Police Department 

 Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Office 

 Show Low Police Department 

 Snowflake/Taylor Police Department 

 Superior Police Department 

 Yavapai County Sheriff’s Office 

The Task Force K-9 Unit coordinates: 

 K-9 training between Chandler Police Department and the Task Force Chandler Police Department 

 Efforts in K-9 training and certification for Arson K-9 program for Globe Fire Department 

 Random K-9 narcotic sniffs of the detention center and juvenile housing areas in collaboration with the detention staff of the 

Gila County Juvenile Probation Department. 

The Task Force coordinates and promotes the legal interest of the county and promotes public safety by sharing the legal ramifications 

for drug abuse offenders in our communities in collaboration with: 

 Gila County Attorney’s Office, which handles all prosecutions, asset forfeiture and contracts to suspects used in case 

investigations along with legal opinions in coordination with the Task Force on case investigations. 

The Task Force coordinates knock and talks and search warrants activities during their home diversion visits of suspects on the diversion 

program in collaboration with: 

 Gila County Attorney’s Office Diversion Division 

The Task Force collaborates on home visits and intelligence reference to subject(s) who are on probation and who may be involved in 

current criminal activity, with probation personnel of: 

 Gila County Adult Probation Department. 

The Task Force coordinates investigations and assists in providing resource information to trustees about support and staying away from 

drugs once they are released. Additionally, they survey trustees on the familiarity with drugs, drug abuse and drug accessibility in the 

communities to help define which areas the Task Force needs to focus on for future programs and investigations in collaboration with: 

 Gila County Sheriff’s Office. 

The Task Force joins forces to gather intelligence, creating a data base on suspects involved in marijuana cultivation and drug activity in 

the Phoenix metropolitan area with a nexus to Gila County, with: 

 Phoenix Police Department Narcotics/Criminal Investigation Division. The Phoenix Police Department is also an active 

participant in daily case investigation. 

The Task Force teams up with intelligence on wanted suspects that have a nexus to the Gila County area with: 

 Phoenix Police Department Fugitive Task Force. 

State Agencies 

The Task Force works in partnership in processing asset forfeiture cases that may not be able to be handled at the county level, with: 

 Arizona Attorney General’s Office Asset Forfeiture Unit. 

The Task Force cooperates to facilitate case work as well as new drug cases that may involve juvenile(s) in a dangerous or violent 

atmosphere in collaboration with: 

 Arizona Department of Child Protective Services in Gila County. 

The Task Force coordinates intelligence on gang members in the Gila County areas as well as suspect(s) housed in the Gila County 

Sheriff’s Jail and/or the Arizona Department of Corrections Prison Globe Complex in collaboration with: 

 Arizona Department of Corrections Services. 

The Task Force coordinates and collaborates on investigations involving narcotics and liquor violations along with intelligence that is 

generated through these investigations, with: 

 Arizona Department of Liquor Control. 

The Task Force coordinates efforts with narcotic interdictions through their K-9 units and uniform personnel working the major 

thoroughfares such as US Highway 60, US Highway 70, State Route 77, State Route 87, State Route 188 and State Route 288 in 

collaboration with: 

 Arizona Department of Public Safety Highway Patrol Division Services. 

The Task Force coordinates any identified intelligence on gang members in the Gila County area as well as suspect(s) housed in the Gila 



County Sheriff’s Jail and/or the Arizona Department of Corrections Globe Prison Complex in collaboration with: 

 Arizona Department of Public Safety GIITEM Services. 

The Task Force collaborates in reference to meth lab investigations with: 

 Arizona Department of Public Safety Special Operations Unit/Explosive Ordinance Division/Criminal Investigations Division 

Services 

 Maricopa County Sheriff’s Clandestine Drug Lab Task Force 

 D.E.A 

 Arizona Department of Public Safety, AZ DPS is also an active participant in daily case investigations. 

The Task Force also provides instruction on clandestine meth lab entries during the: 

 Arizona Department of Public Safety SWAT School. 

The Task Force coordinates’ information gathered on any criminal activity in and outside of the Gila County area in collaboration with: 

 HIDTA-Phoenix Services 

 RISSAFE Services 

Out of State Agencies 

The Task Force collaborates with intelligence, criminal interdictions, and controlled drug deliveries in their area with the: 

 Alamogordo Police Department, Alamogordo, New Mexico 

 Albuquerque Police Department, Albuquerque, New Mexico 

 Bernalillo County Sheriff’s Office, Albuquerque, New Mexico 

 Cincinnati Police Department, Cincinnati Ohio 

 Durango Police Department, Durango Colorado 

 Hoke County Sheriff’s Office, Hoke County, North Carolina 

 Kansas City Police Department, Kansas City, Kansas 

 Kansas City Police Department, Kansas City, Missouri 

 New Mexico State Police 

 Otero County Sheriff’s Office, Alamogordo, New Mexico 

The Task Force collaborates with intelligence, expert testimony, involving cases that involve suspect from their area, with: 

 Otero County District Attorney’s Office, Alamogordo, New Mexico. 

Federal Agencies 

The Task Force collaborates with intelligence, criminal interdiction, human trafficking interdictions, and controlled drug deliveries that 

have a nexus to the United States/Mexico border, with: 

 Alliance to Combat Transnational Terrorism 

The Task Force collaborates with intelligence and dissemination of secure, accurate and timely intelligence, with: 

 Arizona HIDTA 

The Task Force provides support in a collaborated effort in criminal interdiction operations/initiatives and provide the intelligence data 

to enhance the efforts to target and interdict smuggling and transportation operations, with: 

 Arizona HIDTA/Domestic Highway Enforcement 

The Task Force collaborates with intelligence, criminal interdictions, and controlled drug deliveries in their area, with: 

 Bureau of Indian Affairs Criminal Investigation Division 

The Task Force collaborates during marijuana cultivation/eradication investigations, with: 

 Drug Enforcement Administration. 

The Task Force collaborates with intelligence sharing reference to ongoing and current trends in weapon violation, explosive violations 

and case law, and provide ongoing K-9 Explosive Detection training for the (2) explosive detection K-9’s assigned to the Task Force and 

the Gila County Sheriff’s Office in collaboration with: 

 Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives Department 

The Task Force collaborates with intelligence on border crossing suspects and providing training on clandestine labs, with: 

 United States Border Patrol. 

The Task Force collaborates in operations on the White Mountain Apache Indian Reservation on gang and violent crime investigations, 

with: 



 United States Federal Bureau of Investigations 

The Task Force collaborates during marijuana cultivation/eradication investigations, with: 

 United States Forest Service 

The Task Force coordinates with I.C.E. Agents on undocumented alien detention, intelligence, and identification, in collaboration with: 

 United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement. 

The Task Force collaborates in tracking down wanted suspects and intelligence on possible associated subjects, with: 

 United States Marshall’s Fugitive Task Force. 

Tribal Agencies 

The Task Force coordinates any intelligence that maybe conducive to furthering cases involving drugs, gangs, warrants and marijuana 

cultivation, with: 

 San Carlos Apache Tribal Police Department, San Carlos, Arizona 

 San Carlos Apache Recreation and Wildlife Law Enforcement Division, San Carlos, Arizona 

 Tonto Apache Tribal Police Department, Payson, Arizona 

 White Mountain Apache Police Department 

 White Mountain Apache Game and Fish Department 

Schools 

Task Force collaborates with all the schools listed in conducting drug awareness presentations, K-9 demonstrations, and K-9 sniff’s for 

contraband on a continuing basis. 

Elementary School: 

 Charles Bejarano Elementary School, Miami, Arizona 

 Copper Rim Elementary School, Globe, Arizona 

 Destiny Elementary School, Globe, Arizona 

 Hayden Elementary School, Winkelman, Arizona 

 Julia Randall Elementary, Payson, Arizona 

 Pine/Strawberry Elementary/Middle School, Pine, Arizona 

 St. Charles Parochial School, San Carlos, Arizona 

 Tonto Basin Elementary School, Tonto Basin, Arizona 

Middle School/ Junior High 

 Hayden Junior High School, Winkelman, Arizona 

 High Desert Junior High School, Globe, Arizona 

 Lee Kornegay Junior High School, Miami, Arizona 

 Rim Country Middle School, Payson, Arizona 

 San Carlos Apache Junior High School, San Carlos, Arizona 

 Young Elementary, Middle, High School, Young, Arizona 

High School: 

 Alchesay High School, Whiteriver, Arizona 

 Globe High School, Globe, Arizona 

 Hayden High School, Winkelman, Arizona 

 Miami High School, Miami, Arizona 

 Payson High School, Payson, Arizona 

 San Carlos Apache High School, San Carlos, Arizona 

 Other Organizations 

The Task Force is provided with information on possible drug activity they may become aware of during their call for service by: 

 Arizona Public Service, Globe, Arizona 

 Southwest Gas Company Globe, Arizona- 

The Task Force is given insight in what sorts of drugs patients are dealing with, by: 

 Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center, Globe, Arizona 

 Payson Regional Medical Center, Payson, Arizona 

These hospitals also provide patients with resources on drug abuse. 



The Task Force collaborates with: 

 Community Bridges Drug, and Alcohol Rehabilitation Globe and Payson, Arizona. This organization provides educational 

efforts and quality treatment for substance abuse disorder. Recovering addicts share their stories during drug awareness 

presentations to help draw a clear picture for the attendees about the different stages of addiction and recovery. They also 

survey their intake patients and provide data on what sorts of drugs are being used in our communities and how accessible the 

drugs are. 

The Task Force provides drug awareness training and K-9 detection training/drug sniff for any contraband in their facility upon request: 

 Freeport McMoran Copper and Gold Mine, Miami, Arizona 

  

 

 

 

Describe in detail a recent collaboration, other than a service referral, involving one or several of the agencies listed above. Discuss the 

purpose of the collaboration, your agency’s contribution to process and the outcomes. Response is limited to 4,000 characters, including 

spaces.  

 

Enter narrative below: 

 

In February 2017, the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force in a coordinated effort with the Gila County Sheriff’s 

Office conducted an investigation at a residence in Northern Gila County. During the investigation, a search warrant was executed and 

34 grams of heroin, 42 grams of methamphetamines and 50 pieces of drug paraphernalia were seized. Four suspects were arrested and 

information from all four suspects was passed onto the Mesa and Phoenix Police Departments Intelligence groups. 

In January 2017, the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force in a collaborated effort with detectives from the White 

Mountain Apache Tribal Police Department along with Troopers from the Arizona Department of Public Safety, conducted a traffic stop 

on Highway in Southern Gila County. During the investigation, a search of the vehicle was conducted and 92.3 grams of 

methamphetamines, along with 854 drug paraphernalia items and $2,597.00 in U.S. Currency was seized and one suspect was arrested. 

Information received out of the investigation revealed the suspect was a main supplier for methamphetamines for the Cibecue area of the 

White Mountain Apache Reservation. Intelligence was also gathered from the suspect and that information was passed onto the Phoenix 

Police Department Narcotics Unit. 

In January 2017, the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force in a collaborated effort with the detectives from the 

Arizona Department of Public Safety and officers from the Tonto Apache Tribal Police Department conducted an investigation on the 

Tonto Apache Reservation in Northern Gila County. During the investigation, 908 grams of methamphetamines, numerous items of drug 

paraphernalia and a 2001 Chevrolet Tahoe were seized. Two suspects were arrested and information obtained from the investigation was 

passed to Albuquerque DEA Office along with Arizona Department of Public Safety HIT Squad. 

In September 2016, the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force in a collaborated effort involving the White Mountain 

Apache Tribal Police, White Mountain Apache Game and Fish Rangers, agents from the Federal Bureau of Investigations, agents from 

the Bureau of Indian Affairs, detectives from the Arizona Department of Public Safety GITTEM Unit participated in the Safe Street Task 

Force detail on the White Mountain Apache Reservation. During the detail, 61 (GMIC’s) Gang  Member Identification Cards were 

conducted along with 11 arrest, 28 marijuana plants seized (total weight 42 pounds street value of $35,700), 4 grams of 

methamphetamines and 43 grams of marijuana both packaged for sale. 

In August 2016, the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force in a collaborated effort with the White Mountain Apache 

Tribal Police Department and the White Mountain Apache Game and Fish Rangers conducted an investigation into a possible outdoor 

marijuana cultivation site on the White Mountain Apache Reservation. In coordinated efforts with the Arizona Department of Public 

Safety Narcotics Division, Arizona Department of Public Safety GIITEM Unit, Arizona Department of Public Safety “Ranger” Unit 

along with Navajo County Sheriff’s Office M.C.A.T., Bureau of Indian Affairs Narcotics Division and Law Enforcement Division 

assisted on the marijuana eradication phase of the investigation. 2,413 marijuana plants were seized and two suspects were arrested. 

Information seized from the investigation was passed on to numerous prospective law enforcement agencies in the Metro Phoenix area. 

In August 2016, the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force in a coordinated effort with the Gila County Sheriff’s 

Office and the Globe Police Department conducted a traffic on a vehicle in Southern Gila County. During the investigation, 43.6 grams 

of heroin and numerous items of drug paraphernalia were seized. Three suspects were arrested on various drug and child abuse charges. 

Arizona Department of Child Safety assisted with the child abuse investigation. Information received from the investigation was passed 

on the Drug Enforcement Administration Phoenix Office and the Mesa Police Department. 

 

 

Evaluation Plan 

How will you evaluate the effectiveness of the program activities? Response is limited to 4,000 characters, including spaces.  



 

Enter narrative below: 

 

Each month, the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force Commander will compile statistical data filled out by each 

detective on a Task Force generated “Alliance Report” form.  The “Alliance Report” has the pertinent information from the case 

investigation along with the information as to the suspect(s) and any type of illicit drug, property, weapons or U.S. currency that is 

seized. Each “Alliance Report” also has a narrative as to the investigation. The computer generated information will be summarized onto 

a monthly report and the monthly reports will be reported back to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in an on-line quarterly 

report. 

Task Force personnel will meet monthly to discuss the statistical data to be reported and where that data stands with our goals and 

objectives to interdict, assist, initiate and prosecute cases. Also during these meetings, informant case status will be discussed to 

determine if any new informants are being utilized or the need to deactivate old informants due to inactivity. 

The Task Force, in collaboration with community civic organizations, evaluates the drug awareness presentations by taking surveys from 

the different groups that receive presentations. The Community Bridges Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation in coordination with the Task 

Force will continue providing an alternative for suspects such as rehabilitation, in lieu of prosecution in the courts when the situation is 

feasible, as well as conducting presentations.  Task Force personnel will document all the information received and the number of 

attendees which is documented on Task Force Alliance Report forms. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 
Goals and Objectives  
 

 

  

Goal:  To reduce or disrupt the flow of illicit drugs imported, transported and sold in the community.   

 

 

Objectives (please complete at least 1): 

 

 

Description % # Performance Measure 

1.1 Increase arrest for 

importing/transporting of illicit drugs  
%  45  Number of arrest for transport/import of drugs  

1.2 Increase arrest for the distribution 

of illicit drugs  
%  30  Number of arrests for distribution/sales of drugs  

 %  30  Number of arrest for buying and receiving drugs  

1.3 Disrupt methamphetamine labs  %  80  Number of methamphetamine related investigations  

 %  1  Number of clandestine labs seized  

 %  1  Number of methamphetamine dump sites discovered  

 %  1  
Number of methamphetamine sites referred for 

mitigation/cleanup  

1.4 Eradicate marijuana cultivation 

grows  
%  6  Number of indoor marijuana grows seized  

 %  7  Number of outdoor marijuana grows seized  

 %  30  Number of marijuana cultivation grow investigations  

 %  10  Number of arrest for marijuana cultivation grows  

1.5 Disrupt or dismantle Drug 

Trafficking Organizations  
%  6  Number of Drug Trafficking Organizations disrupted  

 %  6  Number of Drug Trafficking Organizations dismantled   
 

 

 

 

Goal:  Strengthen collaborative partnerships between federal, state and local law enforcement and prosecutorial 

agencies.   

 

 

 

Objectives (please complete at least 1): 



 

 

Description % # Performance Measure 

2.1 Conduct coordination or collaboration 

activities with other agencies   
%  20  Number of deconfliction events  

 %  30  Number of tips/leads referred to other task forces  

 %  3  Number of counter terrorism referrals   

 %  8  
Number of drug-endangered child referrals or calls to 

DCS  

 %  60  Number of drug interdiction activity assists  

2.2 Conduct intelligence-driven, 

collaborative investigations  
%  30  

Number of intelligence-driven collaborative 

investigations  

 %  30  
Number of intelligence-driven investigations resulting 

in arrest  

 %  20  
Number of intelligence-driven investigations resulting 

in drug seizures  
 

 

 

 

Goal:  Coordinate training/education programs with the partnerships between federal, tribal, state, local law 

enforcement, prosecutorial agencies, commu 

nity organizations and educational facilities.  

 

 

 

Objectives (please complete at least 1): 

 

 

Description % # Performance Measure 

3.1  %  20  
Number of training provided to law enforcement/prosecutorial 

agencies  

 %  10  Number of training provided to community/civic organizations  

 %  10  Number of presentations provided to educational facilities   
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Budget  
 

 

Personnel  
Enter narrative below: 

 

The Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force would like to branch into a larger multi-agency task force and is therefore 

requesting funding for: 

1) GCSO Commander, to direct the Task Force and to enforce Local, State and Federal laws, according to policies, procedures and 

regulations 

(1) GCSO Sergeant, to help manage the operations of the Task Force, enforce Local, State and Federal laws, according to policies, 

procedures and regulations 

(3) GCSO Detectives, to facilitate the justice process by conducting investigations into serious crimes as well as enforce Local, State 

and Federal laws, according to policies, procedures and regulations 

(1) Globe PD Detective, to facilitate the justice process by conducting investigations into serious crimes as well as enforce Local, State 

and Federal laws, according to policies, procedures and regulations 

(1) San Carlos PD Detective, to facilitate the justice process by conducting investigations into serious crimes as well as enforce Local, 

State and Federal laws, according to policies, procedures and regulations 

(1) GCSO Accounting Clerk, to facilitate the accounting operations of the Task Force and to ensure compliance with all State and 

Federal Laws and County and Internal policies and procedures. 



Please see attached job descriptions. 

  

Full Time/Part Time 

 

 

Position Title # Pos (FTE) Annual Salary Subtotal Salary ERE Rate ERE Subtotal Total   

GCSO Commander   1  $84,162.12  $84,162.12  62.54%  $52,634.99  $136,797.11   

GCSO Sergeant   1  $56,820.72  $56,820.72  67.37%  $38,280.12  $95,100.84   

GCSO Detective  1  $54,486.79  $54,486.79  68%  $37,051.02  $91,537.81   

GCSO Detective  1  $53,059.36  $53,059.36  68.42%  $36,303.21  $89,362.57   

GCSO Detective  1  $49,084.54  $49,084.54  69.71%  $34,216.83  $83,301.37   

GCSO Accounting Clerk  1  $28,622.44  $28,622.44  46.71%  $13,369.54  $41,991.98   

Salary Subtotal: $326,236.00 

ERE Subtotal: $211,856.00 

Total: $538,092.00 

 

 

Overtime 

 

 

Position Title Hours Hourly Wage Subtotal Wages ERE Rate ERE Subtotal Total   

Wages Subtotal: $0.00 

ERE Subtotal: $0.00 

Total: $0.00 

 

 

ERE Breakdown 

 

Enter narrative below: 

 

  

 

GCSO Commander Position $84,162.12   GCSO Task Force Sergeant $56,820.72 

Health Insurance ($7,848/annually) 9.32%   Health Insurance ($7,848/annually) 13.81% 

Deputies Retirement 41.96%   Deputies Retirement 41.96% 

FICA/Medicare 7.65%   FICA/Medicare 7.65% 

Deputies Workman’s Comp 2.89%   Deputies Workman’s Comp 2.89% 

Clothing Allowance ($600.08/annually) 0.71%   Clothing Allowance ($600.08/annually) 1.06% 

Total ERE 62.54%   Total ERE 67.37% 

          

GCSO Task Force Detective Position $54,486.79   GCSO Task Force Detective Position $53,059.36 

Health Insurance ($7,848/annually) 14.40%   Health Insurance ($7,848/annually) 14.79% 

Deputies Retirement 41.96%   Deputies Retirement 41.96% 

FICA/Medicare 7.65%   FICA/Medicare 7.65% 

Deputies Workman’s Comp 2.89%   Deputies Workman’s Comp 2.89% 

Clothing Allowance ($600.08/annually) 1.10%   Clothing Allowance ($600.08/annually) 1.13% 

Total ERE 68.00%   Total ERE 68.42% 



          

GCSO Task Force Detective Position $49,084.54   GCSO Accounting Clerk Position $28,622.44 

Health Insurance ($7,848/annually) 15.99%   Health Insurance ($7,848/annually) 27.42% 

Deputies Retirement 41.96%   Retirement 11.48% 

FICA/Medicare 7.65%   FICA/Medicare 7.65% 

Deputies Workman’s Comp 2.89%   Workman’s Comp 0.16% 

Clothing Allowance ($600.08/annually) 1.22%   Total ERE 46.71% 

Total ERE 69.71%       

 

  
 

 

 

 

Consultant/Contractual Services  
Enter narrative below: 

 

  

 

Position Title 
# Pos 

(FTE) 

Annual 

Salary 

Subtotal 

Salary 
ERE Rate 

ERE 

Subtotal 
Total 

Globe PD Detective 1 $44,541.60 $44,541.60 69.19% $30,816.34 $75,357.95 

San Carlos R&W Detective 1 $45,855.84 $45,855.84 69.61% $31,922.31 $77,778.15 

Total     $90,397.44   $62,738.66 $153,136.10 

 

  

  

ERE Breakdown 

 

Globe PD Detective Position $44,541.60   San Carlos R&W Detective Position $49,084.54 

Health Insurance 16.69%   Health Insurance ($7,848/annually) 17.11% 

Deputies Retirement 41.96%   Deputies Retirement 41.96% 

FICA/Medicare 7.65%   FICA/Medicare 7.65% 

Deputies Workman’s Comp 2.89%   Deputies Workman’s Comp 2.89% 

Total ERE 69.19%   Total ERE 69.61% 

 

  

  

 

 

Expense Type Hours Rate Total   



Salary and ERE for Globe PD Detective  2,088  $36.09  $75,357.95   

Salary and ERE for San Carlos R & W Detective  2,088  $37.25  $77,778.15   

Total: $153,136.00 

 

 

 

 

 

Travel (In State)  
Enter narrative below: 

 

 

 

Expense Type Units Amount Total   

Total: $0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

Travel (Out of State)  
Enter narrative below: 

 

 

 

Expense Type Units Amount Total   

Total: $0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

Confidential Funds   
Enter narrative below: 

 

 

 

Expense Type Amount Total   

Total: $0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Operating Expenses  
Enter narrative below: 

 

 

 

Expense Type Type Quantity Each Total   

Supplies Subtotal: $0.00 

Registration/Training Subtotal: $0.00 

Other Subtotal: $0.00 

Total: $0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

Equipment Purchases  
Enter narrative below: 

 



 

 

Expense Type Type Quantity Each Total   

Capital Subtotal: $0.00 

Non-Capital Subtotal: $0.00 

Total: $0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

If matching funds are required for this grant program, provide a description of what funds will be used as the required match.  

General fund will provide any match to this grant. 

  
 

Total Project Cost  
State: $241,930.00 Federal: $276,491.00 Match: $172,807.00 Grand Total: $691,228.00 

 

 

 
 
Administration  
 

 

Financial Capacity 
Will ACJC funds be used as matching funds for other grant program(s)?  No 

If yes, please list the name(s) of the grant program and funding agency. 

 

 

 

Audit Requirements 

Provide the date of your last financial audit (A-133 or independent audit). 

6/5/2013  

 

Did the audit result in finding listed in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs?    

Yes 

 

 

Policies & Procedures 

Does the organization maintain policies which include procedures for assuring compliance with the terms of the grant award?   

Yes 

 

 

Does the organization maintain written codes of conduct for employees?   

Yes 

 

 

Does the organization maintain written procurement policies and procedures?   

Yes 

 

 

Accounting System 

Is there a separate account maintained for grant funds?   

Yes 

 

 

How frequently does posting to the General Ledger occur?   

Daily 

 

 

Does the accounting system completely and accurately track the receipt and disbursements of funds by each grant or funding source?    

Yes 

 

 

Does the accounting system provide for the recording of actual costs compared to budgeted costs for each budget line item?   



Yes 

 

 

Internal Controls 

Are time and effort distribution reports maintained for employees working fully or partially on grant programs and account for 100% of 

each employee's time?   

Yes 

 

 

Are employee time sheets supported by appropriately approved/signed documents?   

Yes 

 

 

Are duties of the bookkeeper/accountant segregated from the duties of cash receipt or cash disbursement?    

Yes 

 

 

Are checks signed by individuals whose duties exclude recording cash received, approving vouchers for payment, and the preparation of 

payroll?   

Yes 

 

 

Are all accounting entries and payments supported by source documentation?    

Yes 

 

 

Does the organization have adequate staff to comply with the terms of the grant agreement?    

Yes 

 

 

Are the officials of the agency bonded or covered by a liability policy?    

Yes 

 

 

 

 
 
Attachments  
 

 

Please upload any additional documentation here. You may upload multiple files if necessary. 

 

NOTE: 

Non-profit organizations can demonstrate its non-profit status in any one of four methods. Please attach one of the following to this 

application:  

1. Submission of proof of 501(c)(3) status from the Internal Revenue Service. 

2. Submission of a statement from the state taxing authority or state Secretary of State, or other similar official certifying that the 

organization is a non-profit operating within the state, and that no part of its net earnings may lawfully benefit any private 

shareholder or individual.  

3. Submission of a certified copy of the applicant's certificate of incorporation or similar document.  

4. Submission of any item above, if that item applies to a state or national parent organization, together with a statement by the 

state or parent organization that the applicant is a local nonprofit affiliate. 

 

Max size per upload 10MB.  

 

  

A-133 Audit.pdf 

A-133 email.pdf 

Task Force Commander job description.pdf 

Task Force Sergeant job description.pdf 

Task Force Detective job description.pdf 

Accounting Clerk job desccription.pdf 

NDTA 2016.pdf 

../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_A-133%20Audit.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_A-133%20email.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Task%20Force%20Commander%20job%20description.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Task%20Force%20Sergeant%20job%20description.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Task%20Force%20Detective%20job%20description.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Accounting%20Clerk%20job%20desccription.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_NDTA%202016.pdf


Gila County Threat Assessment.xlsx 

EDGE_Report_2016.pdf 

den062216.pdf 

ADHS Table B3 2012-2014.pdf 

ADHS Table E4 2012-2014.pdf 

SAC Community Data Project Gila County.pdf 

Miami PD Letter of Participation.pdf 

Gila Co Sheriff's Office Letter of Participation.pdf 

Globe PD Letter of Participation.pdf 

San Carlos Recreation & Wildlife Letter of Participation.pdf 

WMAT Game and Fish Letter of Participation.pdf 

Drug Enforcement Administration Letter of Participation.pdf 

Budget Worksheet FY18.pdf 

WMAT Police Letter of Participation 17-18.pdf 

Gila County Attorney Letter of Participation 17-18.pdf 

 

 

 
 
Special  Conditions  
 

 

 

Special Conditions 

1. GRANTEE must verify Agency Point of Contact (APOC), Financial Point of Contact (FPOC), Program Point of Contact (PPOC), and 

Authorized Official contact information in the Grants Management System (GMS), including telephone number and e-mail address. If 

any information is incorrect or has changed, a Grant Adjustment Notice (GAN) must be submitted via the GMS to document changes. In 

addition the FPOC and PPOC must be assigned by the APOC prior to payments being made. 

2. GRANTEE agrees that within 120 days of award, for any law enforcement task force funded with these funds, the task force 

commander, agency executive, task force officers and other task force members of equivalent rank, will complete required online 

(internet-based) task force training to be provided free of charge through BJA’s Center for Task Force Integrity and Leadership 

(www.ctfli.org). Task force members need only take the training once every four years. GRANTEE will compile and maintain a task 

force personnel roster and course completion certificates. 

3. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the ACJC Subgrantee Self-Assessment Questionnaire within 45 days of the start date of this 

award. 

4. GRANTEE agrees that within 45 days of award, for any agency that receives income as a result of grant-funded activities, it will 

complete the ACJC Program Income Worksheet. 

5. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the Benchmarks Worksheet within 45 days of award. 

6. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the Budget Detail Worksheet reflecting the overall budget within 45 days of award. 

7. GRANTEE assures if they are a state agency that the State Information Technology Point of Contact receive written notification 

regarding any information technology project funded by this grant.  GRANTEE agrees to keep on file documentation showing that it has 

met this requirement. 

8. GRANTEE agrees and understands that funded activities may require the preparation of an Environmental Assessment (EA) as 

defined by the Council of Environmental Quality’s Regulations for implementing the Procedural Provisions of the National 

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), found at 40 CFR Part 1500. 

9. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations applicable to the development and 

implementation of activities to be funded under this award.  The GRANTEE agrees and understands that complying with NEPA may 

require the preparation of an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement, as directed by BJA.  The 

GRANTEE further understands and agrees to requirements for implementation of a Mitigation Plan, as detailed at 

http://www.ojp.usdog.gov/BJA/resource/nepa.html for programs relating to methamphetamine laboratory operations. 

10. GRANTEE agrees that any information technology system developed or supported by funds will comply with 28 CFR Part 23, 

Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies, if OJP determines this regulation be applicable. Should OJP determine 28 CFR Part 

23 to be applicable, OJP may at its discretion, perform audits of the system, as per 28 CFR 23.20(g).  Should any violation of 28 CFR 

Part 23 occur, GRANTEE may be fined as per 42 USC 3789g(c)-(d). GRANTEE may not satisfy such a fine with federal funds. 

../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Gila%20County%20Threat%20Assessment.xlsx
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_EDGE_Report_2016.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_den062216.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_ADHS%20Table%20B3%202012-2014.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_ADHS%20Table%20E4%202012-2014.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_SAC%20Community%20Data%20Project%20Gila%20County.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Miami%20PD%20Letter%20of%20Participation.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Gila%20Co%20Sheriff
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Globe%20PD%20Letter%20of%20Participation.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_San%20Carlos%20Recreation%20&amp;%20Wildlife%20Letter%20of%20Participation.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_WMAT%20Game%20and%20Fish%20Letter%20of%20Participation.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Drug%20Enforcement%20Administration%20Letter%20of%20Participation.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Budget%20Worksheet%20FY18.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_WMAT%20Police%20Letter%20of%20Participation%2017-18.pdf
../../lmellema/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/Upload/app5114_Gila%20County%20Attorney%20Letter%20of%20Participation%2017-18.pdf
http://www.ctfli.org/
http://www.ojp.usdog.gov/BJA/resource/nepa.html


11. GRANTEE agrees that no JAG funds may be expended on unmanned aircraft, unmanned aircraft systems, or aerial vehicles (US, 

UAS, or UAV) without prior express written approval from Commission. 

12. Grant funds shall be used to reduce drug crimes in support of the Arizona 2016-2019 Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control State 

Strategy. 

 

On behalf of the applicant agency I certify that: I have read and understand the conditions listed above; all the information 

presented in this application is correct; there has been appropriate coordination with affected agencies; and the applicant agency will 

comply with the provisions of all applicable laws and conditions if awarded funds. 
 

 



   
ARF-4226   Regular Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Steve Lessard, Chief Probation Officer 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

01-04-17-01-04-18 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Pinal County
Justice Center to house and treat detained juveniles.

Background Information
With the pending closure of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center,
Gila County Probation has been transporting juveniles in need of
detention to the Pinal County Youth Justice Center (Detention Center).
Pinal County leadership has agreed to, and drafted an IGA for Gila
County consideration, to detain juveniles (effective January 4, 2017) for
Gila County Superior Court, or needing to be detained in the future for
the next three (3) years. Pinal County is proposing a daily rate of
incarceration per juvenile.

The need to detain juveniles in Gila County has declined substantially
over the past five (5) years and this trend is consistent throughout the
State of Arizona and nationally. Keeping the Globe Detention Center open
for very few or no juveniles is not fiscally sustainable in terms of
personnel needed 24/7, minimum staffing standards to keep the facility
open, and infrastructure costs in including much needed improvements.
The Superior Court and all stakeholders involved support the Pinal
County IGA and the closing of the detention center.

Evaluation
It costs over $1.3 million to run and maintain the Globe Detention Center



It costs over $1.3 million to run and maintain the Globe Detention Center
(infrastructure, operations and personnel). With periods of time with no
juveniles, or one or two, running a full staff of twenty (20,) and a
Detention Manager makes little to no fiscal sense for Gila County
taxpayers. Gila County was one of the first Juvenile Detention
Alternatives Initiative (JDAI) sites, and in the process of implementation of
JDAI and the use of a standardized detention screening instrument (DSI),
we have learned that detention is not always an evidence-based practice
when it comes to kids. In fact, we now know that detention does more
harm to a juvenile than good. In addition to JDAI, and with the full
support of the County Attorney's Office, Gila County Juvenile Probation
runs a very robust and successful Diversion Program that is invested in
families and prevention. This type of non-detention programming has led
to the dramatically decreased need for detaining kids.

Because public safety is our mission, there will always be a need to detain
a juvenile who is a risk to the community. We will continue to identify,
assess and respond to the public safety needs of our communities. The
Pinal County Youth Justice Center (PCYJC) fills that (infrequent) need.
Pinal County is also a JDAI certified facility and has outstanding
programming for juveniles in detention, including medical and education
services on site. A cost of $175 per day is substantially lower than the
going rate of up to $400 per day to detain a juvenile in other counties. It
is noted that Pinal County has held juveniles for Gila County on conflict
cases without charging a fee based on Gila County Probation's continued
partnership with Pinal County.

In August 2016, the Chief Probation Officer re-initiated discussion with
the Presiding Judge of the Gila County Superior Court, County Manager,
and County Finance Director regarding the use of scarce resources on an
expensive detention facility. This conversation led to a frank conversation
with detention officer staff. As a result, our detention workforce has
dwindled down from over twenty (20) officers (FY2016) to nine (9) officers
(we anticipate more resignations or placements, with the hope of not
having to lay-off one officer). With the need to provide continued vital
services to the courts and law enforcement 24/7, we intend to keep
approximately six (6) detention officers to transport juveniles to and from
Pinal County to be detained, transported to and from court status
hearings, and to make parents accessible to juveniles in detention. We
also anticipate using these officers to transport families and juveniles
participating in the Diversion Program to treatment, supervise community
service work crews, complete pretrial assessments and function as
dispatchers for our probation officers in the field.

Conclusion



Conclusion
The fee for daily services for the occasional detention of Gila County
juveniles is very generous and a substantial cost savings to Gila County.
Further, closing the facility is saving Gila County hundreds of thousands
of dollars. The Pinal County Youth Justice Center is in the forefront of
evidence-based practices and their facilities are exceptional. Law
enforcement and the courts will continue to be serviced 24/7 for kids in
detention or arrested and in need of assessment to be detained. The
closing of the Globe Detention Center from the vantage point of law
enforcement and the courts will be unrecognizable given that detention
staff will continue to provide the same vital functions; in fact, our process
will assure law enforcement is back on patrol faster without the need to
find home placement or transport to Pinal County detention. With the
trend continuing to move towards a continued reduction in juveniles
being detained in Gila County, statewide and nationwide, approving the
IGA with Pinal County has no recognizable downside. It is good for our
kids, taxpayers and the community, and a good investment in families
and prevention.

Recommendation
The Finance Director and Chief Probation Officer recommend that the
Board of Supervisors approve the IGA with Pinal Justice Center to house
and treat detained Juveniles. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental
Agreement with Pinal County Justice Center to house and treat detained
juveniles for the period January 4, 2017, through January 4, 2018, with
automatic one-year renewals up to ten years per Arizona Revised
Statute § 11-952 (J) . (James Menlove/Steve Lessard) 

Attachments
IGA with Pinal County Justice Center























   
ARF-4329   Regular Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: James Menlove, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-14-16 to 10-13-17 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 6 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1-Messinger
Mortuary & Chapel, Inc.-Forensics Center Facility for Gila County Medical
Examiner

Background Information
On October 14, 2014, Gila County entered into Service Agreement No.
022514-1 with Messinger Mortuary & Chapel, Inc. whereby Messinger
Mortuary & Chapel, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries including
(Messinger Payson Funeral Home, Inc.) agreed to provide a facility for the
Gila County Medical Examiner to perform autopsies.  The contract was
issued for a period of one year in a not to exceed amount of $20,000
without prior written approval from Gila County.  Additionally, the
contract allows for the option to renew the contract term for three
additional one-year periods.    

On September 29, 2015, the County Manager approved Amendment No. 1
to increase the total contract by an additional $2,000 for a new total
contract amount of $22,000.

On October 20, 2015, the County Manager approved Amendment No. 2 to
extend the term of the contract from October 14, 2015, to October 13,
2016, with a not to exceed dollar amount of $20,000 without written
approval from the County.

On June 1, 2016, the County Manager approved Amendment No. 3 to
increase the total contract by an additional $8,000 for a new contract



increase the total contract by an additional $8,000 for a new contract
amount of $28,000.

On August 3, 2016, the County Manager approved Amendment No. 4
to increase the total contract by an additional $10,000 for a new, not to
exceed without written authorization contract amount of $38,000 for
the October 14, 2015, to October 13, 2016, contract term.

On October 12, 2016, the County Manager approved Amendment No. 5 to
increase the total contract by an additional $8,000 for a new, not to
exceed without written authorization contract amount of $46,000 for
the October 14, 2015, to October 13,  2016, contract term. Further,
Amendment No. 5 served to extend the contract term from October 14,
2016, to October 13, 2017. 

Evaluation
As of Messinger Mortuary & Chapel, Inc.'s April billing, the sum of
$46,000 has been expensed against the yearly contract which ends on
October 13, 2017. Additional funds will be required to cover the remaining
term of this contract. Amendment No. 6 will increase the current contract
amount of $46,000 by an additional $42,000 for a new, not to exceed
without prior written authorization total contract amount of $88,000 for
the contract term from October 14, 2016, to October 13, 2017.

Conclusion
Additional funds are needed to cover expenses for the Forensic Center
Facility for Gila County Medical Examiner use for the remainder of the
contract term. As it is not possible to predict the costs that will be
incurred during the course of the contract term, Amendment No. 6 has
been issued to increase the contract amount from $46,000 to $88,000 for
the remainder of the contract term, which expires on October 13, 2017.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of Amendment No. 6 to Service Agreement
No. 022514-1 Messinger Mortuary Chapel, Inc. to increase the current
contract amount of $46,000 by $42,000 for a new total contract amount
of $88,000 for the contract term from October 14, 2016, to October 13,
2017.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 6 to Service



Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 6 to Service
Agreement No. 022514-1 - Forensic Center Facility for Gila County
Medical Examiner between Gila County and Messinger Mortuary &
Chapel, Inc. to increase the original contract amount from $42,000 to
$88,000 for the remaining contract term beginning October 14, 2016,
through October 13, 2017.  (James Menlove)

Attachments
Amendment No. 6 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
Amendment No. 5 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
Amendment No. 4 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
Services Agreement No. 022514-1 with Messinger Mortuary



































   
ARF-4320   Consent Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Proposed Revisions to Public Works Division Policy No. ENG 03-03 –
Guidelines to Primitive Roads.

Background Information
The proposed revisions are to the Public Works Division Policy No. ENG
03-03 – Guidelines to Primitive Roads, which was originally approved
October 7, 2003, with revisions being approved on December 14, 2004.

Evaluation
Aside from a few grammatical changes, the reference to the applicable
Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) is now attached.  The main reason for the
revision is to update the Citizen’s Petition changing the last column,
Average Length of Residence Per Year, to two columns, Resident of
County (Yes or No) and Property Taxpayer (Yes or No).  This change to the
Citizen’s Petition is at the request of the Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy
County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief.

Conclusion
The proposed revisions address the specifics on the individual signing the
petition.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division recommends approval of proposed
revisions to Public Works Division Policy No. ENG 03-03 - Guidelines to
Primitive Roads.

Suggested Motion
Approval of revised Public Works Division Policy No. ENG 03-03 -
Guidelines to Primitive Roads.



Attachments
ENG 03-03 Changes in Red
ENG 03-03 Guidelines to Primitive Raods



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-
045-23-17 

 

   GILA COUNTY 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

DIVISION POLICY or PROCEDURE 
 

Title: 
 

Guidelines to Primitive Roads 
 

Effective 

Date:  
    10/7/2003 

(Revised) 

12/14/2004 

5/23/2017 

(2
nd

 

Revision) 

Department: 
 

Engineering 
 

Purpose: 
 

To establish a uniform countywide 
policy pertaining to the designation 
and maintenance of “Primitive 
Roads” per ARS § 28-6706. 
 

Authorized Signature: 
 
 

   ____________________________ 
Steve Sanders, 

Director of Public Works 
 

____________________________ 
Jefferson R.rey Dalton 

Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau 
Chief 

 

 

 

Policy Statement: 

 
To help clarify which County Maintained Roads are designated as Primitive 
Roads, what guidelines are to be used in selection of these roads, and the 
signing requirements mandated for such roads. 
 

1. Background: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-
045-23-17 

 

 
In the summer of 1993, Ccounty Eengineers and Ccounty Aattorneys 
from around Arizona, along with staff from the County Supervisors 
Association, met in Payson to discuss a growing concern about 
maintaining rural roads that were not built to Ccounty standards. Those 
concerns stem from the public safety and liability issues associated with 
these roadways, which were built prior to Counties in Arizona having 
subdivision approval authority. In an effort to reduce this exposure, a  
 
draft piece of legislation was drawn up and taken to the Arizona 
Legislature.  This bill was submitted in the House of Representatives 
(H.B. 2257) and passed into law as ARS §18-207.01 in the spring of 
1994.  It became state law beginning July 17, 1994. Subsequent to this 
law the statutes regarding transportation were renumbered and the 
current statute is known as ARS § 28-6706 gives the Board of 
Supervisors for each Ccounty the authority to classify public roads 
within its jurisdiction as “Pprimitive Rroads”.  Only public roads opened 
before June 13, 1975, and not built in accordance with Ccounty 
standards can be classified as Pprimitive Rroads.  The Statute also 
requires the Ccounty to sign these Pprimitive Rroads in a way that lets 
the public know that the roads are not maintained on a regularly 
scheduled basis.  
 
2. Responsibilities: 

 
 

3. Procedures: 

 
ROAD ELIGIBILITY  

Primitive Rroad classification shall apply to public roads meeting all 
of the following criteria.  

1. Were opened before June 13, 1975.  
2. Were not constructed in accordance with County Standards.  
3. Are nNot County or State Highways.  
4. Shall have adequate easements dedicated to the public.  
5. Shall be in a condition that County forces can blade with 

minimum cost and risk. The County will not be responsible for 
damage to private utilities in the roadway. 

 
PREDOMINANT TRAFFIC TYPES:  



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-
045-23-17 

 

Dispersed recreation, local access, government, farm or ranch, 
administrative.  

 
SURFACE TYPES:  

Native material or gravel; paved roads are not eligible for Primitive 
Road designation.  

 
CROSS SECTION CHARACTERISTICS:  

1. Does not conform to Ccounty standards.  
 
 

2. May have inconsistent width; however roads must have minimum 
widths to safely operate equipment for purpose of blading.  

3. Surface can vary from native material to rock and gravel.  
 Surface must be in a maintainable state when designated by the 
County as a Primitive Road.  

4. Drainage features typically poor to non-existent.   County forces 
will basically maintain existing roadway conditions.  

5.  Drainage ditches may be cut as part of the blading maintenance 
activity.  
 
ARS § 18-207.01ARS § 28-6706 SIGNING REQUIREMENTS:  

The County shall place signs that state “Primitive Road, Caution Use 
at Your Own Risk, This Surface Is Not Regularly Maintained” on 
roads that are selected by the County for designation as Primitive 
Road in locations adequate to warn the public. 
  
Any roads chosen that are in residential subdivisions shall have signs 
posted at the entry to the subdivision. No roads shall be designated 
primitive without the proper signs being posted.  
 
The minimum allowable warning sign shall be a horizontal rectangle 
with a size of 30 x 48 inches. It shall have a yellow background with 
black legend and border. This sign is intended for use on roadways 
that may have a posted speed in excess of 25 M.P.H.  
 
Warning signs shall be installed within 300 feet or sooner of the 
beginnings of a designated “Primitive Road”.  
 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-
045-23-17 

 

Warning signs shall be installed at the entrances to subdivisions that 
have collectors designated as “Primitive Roads”.  The minimum 
allowable warning sign shall be a horizontal rectangle with a size of 
18 x 24 inches.  This sign is intended for use only in subdivisions that 
may have a posted speed of 25 M.P.H. more or less.  

 
All other signing along Primitive Roads will be in general accordance 
with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
 

 
PRIMITIVE ROADS BLADING MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES:  

1. The Regional Roads ManagerMaintenance Superintendent will be 
primarily responsible for determining the schedule of blading maintenance 
for Pprimitive Rroads, according to these Gila County Policy/Procedure 
Guidelines.  

 
 
2. Roads that are designated as Primitive Roads will receive blading 

maintenance, at a schedule not to exceed three times per fiscal year.  
These three bladings will occur throughout the year to take advantage of 
roadway moisture conditions.  

3. All Pprimitive Rroads will be maintained in the general condition 
they are received at the time of designation.  Limited drainage projects may 
occur on these roads.  

4. All driveway culvert cleaning and installation will remain the 
responsibility of the homeowner.  

5. County forces may expend minimal funds, as budget allows, on 
material to maintain Pprimitive Rroads.  

6. Drainage problems that occur will only be addressed as outlined 
herein.  

7. No Pprimitive Rroad will be brought up to County Standards using 
public funds or County forces. 

 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-
045-23-17 

 

 
28-7214. EXTINGUISHMENT OF EASEMENTS  
 
If this state or a city, town or county does not own title to a roadway 
but holds right-of-way easements, the easements may be 
extinguished by the governing body’s resolution. 
 
If Gila County extinguishes an easement within two years after 
creation and a request for extinguishment comes from owner(s) of 
easement the owner or owners requesting extinguishment shall 
reimburse Gila County any and all costs associated with 
maintenance of said easement from time of acceptance until 
extinguishment.  All requests for extinguishment shall be in writing 
and directed to the Director of Public Works. 

 
Attachments: 

 
ARS § 28-6706 
Primitive Road Designation Application Guidelines 
Petition to Establish a Primitive Road 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-
045-23-17 

 

 
28-6706. Primitive roads 

A. The board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or town may designate a public road 
within its jurisdiction as a primitive road as prescribed in this section. 

B. Neither a county, city or town nor its employees are liable for damages or injuries resulting from 
the use of a primitive road designated under this section except for intentional injuries or gross 
negligence caused by an employee acting within the scope of the employee's employment. 

C. Except as provided in subsection D, the board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or 
town shall not designate a road as a primitive road unless it was opened before June 13, 1975 and 
was not constructed in accordance with county standards. 

D. The board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or town may designate a road as a 
primitive road if all of the following apply: 

1. The road was opened after June 13, 1975. 

2. The road was accepted for maintenance by the board of supervisors or the governing body of a 
city or town before June 13, 1985. 

3. The road was not constructed in accordance with county standards. 

E. The county, city or town shall place signs on every road designated as a primitive road in 
locations adequate to warn the public. These signs shall state "Primitive road, caution, use at your 
own risk. This surface is not regularly maintained." 

F. A board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or town shall not designate a state or 
county highway as a primitive road. 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-
045-23-17 

 

Exhibit “B” 

 

 

Primitive Road Designation Application Guidelines 
 
The following items shall accompany any request by the public to designate a road as a Primitive Road 
prior to consideration by the Board of Supervisors.  These items will be submitted to the Public Works 
Division for review. 
 

1) An application letter and Petition outlining the request for the road to be designated as a 
County maintained Primitive Road. 

 
2) Documentation that the road was opened prior to June 13, 1975. 

 
3) A map showing existing location of the road and all properties that it traverses will be 

provided by Gila County Public Works Division. 
 

4) An easement dedicating the roadway to the public shall be signed by all affected property 
owners on a form provided by Gila County Public Works Division. 

 
5) After review of items 1 through 4 above the Public Works Division will prepare a 

recommendation for action to the Board of Supervisors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-045-23-17 

 

PETITION 
TO ESTABLISH A PRIMITIVE ROAD 

 
 
We the undersigned, respectfully petition the Gila County Board of Supervisors to establish a Primitive Road in the county. The beginning of the proposed road is 
_____________________________________.  The end of the proposed road is ________________________________. The general course and direction of the 
proposed road is __________________________.  The Undersigned respectfully request that the Gila County Board of Supervisors accept this petition and act 
thereon.   
 

  

                    RESIDENT OF        PROPERTY 

              COUNTY         TAXPAYER 

DATE  NAME    ADDRESS & TAX PARCEL NO.    (YES OR NO)        (YES OR NO) 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 
PETITION 

TO ESTABLISH A PRIMITIVE ROAD 
 
 

We the undersigned, respectfully petition the Gila County Board of Supervisors to establish a Primitive Road in the county. The beginning of the proposed road is 
_____________________________________.  The end of the proposed road is ________________________________. The general course and direction of the 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 

Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     12-14-045-23-17 

 

proposed road is __________________________.  The Undersigned respectfully request that the Gila County Board of Supervisors accept this petition and act 
thereon.   

 

AVERAGE LENGTH OF 

DATE   NAME     ADDRESS & TAX PARCEL NO.     RESIDENCE PER YEAR  

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     5-23-17 

 

   GILA COUNTY 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

DIVISION POLICY or PROCEDURE 
 

Title: 
 

Guidelines to Primitive Roads 
 

Effective 
Date:  
10/7/2003 
Revised: 
12/14/2004 
5/23/2017 

 

Department: 
 
Engineering 
 

Purpose: 
 

To establish a uniform countywide 
policy pertaining to the designation 
and maintenance of “Primitive 
Roads” per ARS § 28-6706. 
 

Authorized Signature: 
 
 
   ____________________________ 

Steve Sanders, 
Director of Public Works 

 
____________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau 

Chief 
 

 

 
Policy Statement: 
 
To help clarify which County Maintained Roads are designated as Primitive 
Roads, what guidelines are to be used in selection of these roads, and the 
signing requirements mandated for such roads. 
 

1. Background: 
 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     5-23-17 

 

In the summer of 1993, County Engineers and County Attorneys from 
around Arizona, along with staff from the County Supervisors 
Association, met in Payson to discuss a growing concern about 
maintaining rural roads that were not built to County standards. Those 
concerns stem from the public safety and liability issues associated with 
these roadways, which were built prior to Counties in Arizona having 
subdivision approval authority. In an effort to reduce this exposure, a  
draft piece of legislation was drawn up and taken to the Arizona 
Legislature.  This bill was submitted in the House of Representatives 
(H.B. 2257) and passed into law as ARS §18-207.01 in the spring of 
1994.  It became state law beginning July 17, 1994. Subsequent to this 
law the statutes regarding transportation were renumbered and the 
current statute known as ARS § 28-6706 gives the Board of Supervisors 
for each County the authority to classify public roads within its 
jurisdiction as “Primitive Roads”.  Only public roads opened before June 
13, 1975, and not built in accordance with County standards can be 
classified as Primitive Roads.  The Statute also requires the County to 
sign these Primitive Roads in a way that lets the public know that the 
roads are not maintained on a regularly scheduled basis.  
 
2. Responsibilities: 

 
 

3. Procedures: 
 
ROAD ELIGIBILITY  

Primitive Road classification shall apply to public roads meeting all of 
the following criteria.  

1. Were opened before June 13, 1975.  
2. Were not constructed in accordance with County Standards.  
3. Are not County or State Highways.  
4. Shall have adequate easements dedicated to the public.  
5. Shall be in a condition that County forces can blade with 

minimum cost and risk. The County will not be responsible for 
damage to private utilities in the roadway. 

 
PREDOMINANT TRAFFIC TYPES:  

Dispersed recreation, local access, government, farm or ranch, 
administrative.  

 
SURFACE TYPES:  



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     5-23-17 

 

Native material or gravel; paved roads are not eligible for Primitive 
Road designation.  

 
CROSS SECTION CHARACTERISTICS:  

1. Does not conform to County standards.  
2. May have inconsistent width; however roads must have minimum 

widths to safely operate equipment for purpose of blading.  
3. Surface can vary from native material to rock and gravel.  

 Surface must be in a maintainable state when designated by the 
County as a Primitive Road.  

4. Drainage features typically poor to non-existent.   County forces 
will basically maintain existing roadway conditions.  

5.  Drainage ditches may be cut as part of the blading maintenance 
activity.  
 
ARS § 28-6706 - SIGNING REQUIREMENTS:  

The County shall place signs that state “Primitive Road, Caution Use 
at Your Own Risk, This Surface Is Not Regularly Maintained” on 
roads that are selected by the County for designation as Primitive 
Road in locations adequate to warn the public. 
  
Any roads chosen that are in residential subdivisions shall have signs 
posted at the entry to the subdivision. No roads shall be designated 
primitive without the proper signs being posted.  
 
The minimum allowable warning sign shall be a horizontal rectangle 
with a size of 30 x 48 inches. It shall have a yellow background with 
black legend and border. This sign is intended for use on roadways 
that may have a posted speed in excess of 25 M.P.H.  
 
Warning signs shall be installed within 300 feet or sooner of the 
beginnings of a designated “Primitive Road”.  
 
Warning signs shall be installed at the entrances to subdivisions that 
have collectors designated as “Primitive Roads”.  The minimum 
allowable warning sign shall be a horizontal rectangle with a size of 
18 x 24 inches.  This sign is intended for use only in subdivisions that 
may have a posted speed of 25 M.P.H. more or less.  

 
All other signing along Primitive Roads will be in general accordance 
with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     5-23-17 

 

 
 
PRIMITIVE ROADS BLADING MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES:  

1. The Regional Roads Manager will be primarily responsible for 
determining the schedule of blading maintenance for Primitive Roads, 
according to these Gila County Policy/Procedure Guidelines.  

2. Roads that are designated as Primitive Roads will receive blading 
maintenance, at a schedule not to exceed three times per fiscal year.  
These three bladings will occur throughout the year to take advantage of 
roadway moisture conditions.  

3. All Primitive Roads will be maintained in the general condition they 
are received at the time of designation.  Limited drainage projects may 
occur on these roads.  

4. All driveway culvert cleaning and installation will remain the 
responsibility of the homeowner.  

5. County forces may expend minimal funds, as budget allows, on 
material to maintain Primitive Roads.  

6. Drainage problems that occur will only be addressed as outlined 
herein.  

7. No Primitive Road will be brought up to County Standards using 
public funds or County forces. 

 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     5-23-17 

 

 
28-7214. EXTINGUISHMENT OF EASEMENTS  
 
If this state or a city, town or county does not own title to a roadway 
but holds right-of-way easements, the easements may be 
extinguished by the governing body’s resolution. 
 
If Gila County extinguishes an easement within two years after 
creation and a request for extinguishment comes from owner(s) of 
easement the owner or owners requesting extinguishment shall 
reimburse Gila County any and all costs associated with 
maintenance of said easement from time of acceptance until 
extinguishment.  All requests for extinguishment shall be in writing 
and directed to the Director of Public Works. 

 
Attachments: 
 

ARS § 28-6706 
Primitive Road Designation Application Guidelines 
Petition to Establish a Primitive Road 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     5-23-17 

 

28-6706. Primitive roads 

A. The board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or town may designate a public road 
within its jurisdiction as a primitive road as prescribed in this section. 

B. Neither a county, city or town nor its employees are liable for damages or injuries resulting from 
the use of a primitive road designated under this section except for intentional injuries or gross 
negligence caused by an employee acting within the scope of the employee's employment. 

C. Except as provided in subsection D, the board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or 
town shall not designate a road as a primitive road unless it was opened before June 13, 1975 and 
was not constructed in accordance with county standards. 

D. The board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or town may designate a road as a 
primitive road if all of the following apply: 

1. The road was opened after June 13, 1975. 

2. The road was accepted for maintenance by the board of supervisors or the governing body of a 
city or town before June 13, 1985. 

3. The road was not constructed in accordance with county standards. 

E. The county, city or town shall place signs on every road designated as a primitive road in 
locations adequate to warn the public. These signs shall state "Primitive road, caution, use at your 
own risk. This surface is not regularly maintained." 

F. A board of supervisors or the governing body of a city or town shall not designate a state or 
county highway as a primitive road. 



Policy #ENG03-03 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                     5-23-17 

 

Exhibit “B” 
 
 

Primitive Road Designation Application Guidelines 
 
The following items shall accompany any request by the public to designate a road as a Primitive Road 
prior to consideration by the Board of Supervisors.  These items will be submitted to the Public Works 
Division for review. 
 

1) An application letter and Petition outlining the request for the road to be designated as a 
County maintained Primitive Road. 

 
2) Documentation that the road was opened prior to June 13, 1975. 

 
3) A map showing existing location of the road and all properties that it traverses will be 

provided by Gila County Public Works Division. 
 

4) An easement dedicating the roadway to the public shall be signed by all affected property 
owners on a form provided by Gila County Public Works Division. 

 
5) After review of items 1 through 4 above the Public Works Division will prepare a 

recommendation for action to the Board of Supervisors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





   
ARF-4331   Consent Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Superior Court
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-16 to 06-30-17 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5.

Background Information
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to
provide professional legal services, such as representation for indigent
citizens in the categories of felony and misdemeanor criminal actions,
delinquency, dependency, and mental health cases, as well as mediation
services.

On June 9, 2015, the Board approved Professional Services Contract No.
041515-5 with Tait Elkie of Fountain Hills Law Firm, whereby Mr. Elkie
agreed to provide legal services for indigent citizens as appointed by the
Superior Court in Gila County for a period from July 1, 2015, to June 30,
2016. The initial contract was executed for a not to exceed, without
written authorization amount of $19,848.

On July 26, 2016, the Board approved Amendment No. 1 to extend the
term of the contract from July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017, with a not to
exceed contract amount of $19,848; added the following language to the
contract - In the event of formal discipline of the Attorney by the State
Bar of Arizona; the Court may suspend or terminate the contract; and
modified the contract to assert that the "Attorney" under contract with
Gila County Superior Court is "Tait Elkie."

Evaluation



Due to the change in the Rule of Criminal Procedure, 6.1., Attorney Elkie
will provide limited scope advocacy to determine release conditions for
criminal misdemeanors in which the Defendant is detained. This has
caused the original contract amount of $19,848 to be exceeded.

Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5 expires on June 30, 2017.
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to extend the contract term for an
additional one-year period, from July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018; increase
the contract amount by an additional $1,000 for the contract term of July
1, 2016 to June 30, 2017; increase the contract amount by an additional
$6,000 for the contract term of July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018; and add
the following language to the contract: Contractor hereby certifies that it
is not currently engaged in, and will not, for the duration of this
agreement engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S.
§35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may result in
action by County up to and including termination of this Agreement.

Conclusion
Court Administration has requested the approval of Amendment No. 2 to
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5 to extend the contract term
for an additional one-year period, from July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018;
increase the contract amount by an additional $1,000 for the contract
term of July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017; increase the contract amount by
an additional $6,000 for the contract term of July 1, 2017, to June 30,
2018; and add the following language to the contract: Contractor hereby
certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and will not, for the
duration of this agreement engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by
A.R.S. §35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may
result in action by County up to and including termination of this
Agreement.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Jonathan Bearup, Superior Court
Administrator, that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No 2 to
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5 to extend the contract term
for an additional one-year period, from July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018;
increase the contract amount by an additional $1,000 for the contract
term of July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017; increase the contract amount by
an additional $6,000 for the contract term of July 1, 2017 to June 30,
2018; and add statutorily required language to the contract.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No.



Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No.
041515-5 between the Superior Court in Gila County and Fountain Hills
Law Firm to extend the contract term for an additional one-year period,
from July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018; increase the contract amount by an
additional $1,000 for the contract term of July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017;
increase the contract amount by an additional $6,000 for the contract
term of July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018; and add statutorily required
language to the contract.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5

































   
ARF-4330   Consent Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 102-31-013-G

Background Information
On May 26, 2015, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No.
15-05-05 which outlines the policy and procedures for the sale of land
held by the State of Arizona under tax deed.  The procedures allow the
Clerk of the Board to sell these parcels over the counter for the total lien
amount.  A separate $15 fee is required to be paid by the purchaser in
order to record the Quit Claim Deed.  The procedures also state that a
consent agenda action item will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors
on a regular meeting agenda to obtain authorization from the Board for
the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 

Assessor's tax parcel number 102-31-013-G was deeded to the State of
Arizona in 2012 with a lien amount of $761.30.  It did not sell at the
Board of Supervisors' annual tax sale/auction that was held on December
6, 2016; therefore, it was added to the list of properties that could be
purchased year-round for the total lien amount.  The subject property is
an road access between 955 E. Ranch Creek Road in the El Capitan Area.

Evaluation
On May 11, 2017, the Clerk of the Board deposited a cashier's check in
the amount of $761.30 from Douglas James Tucker with the Gila County
Treasurer for the purchase of the subject property.  The amount paid was
the total lien amount.  A separate $15 payment was submitted to record
the Quit Claim Deed.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on



The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on
the Quit Claim Deed for the sale of Assessor's tax parcel number
102-31-013-G.  Once the deed has been finalized and recorded, it will go
back on the County's tax rolls.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the Chairman's signature on a Quit Claim Deed to finalize the
sale of the subject property to Mr. Tucker.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for the
Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel
number 102-31-013-G to Douglas James Tucker.

Attachments
Quit Claim Deed-Parcel No. 102-31-013-G
Information on Parcel No. 102-31-013-G



 

QCD-Parcel No. 102-31-013-G  Page 1 of 2 

 

When recorded return to:     
Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 

 
 

 GILA COUNTY QUIT-CLAIM DEED 
                                                                                                                                                   

THIS QUIT CLAIM DEED, made this day 23rd day of May 2017, between the State of Arizona, by and 
through the Gila County Board of Supervisors, Grantor, and Douglas James Tucker, Trustee, MTB 
Revocable Living Trust, Grantee.  

 
Address of Grantee:  PO Box 61831, Phoenix, Arizona 85082 
 
 RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the real property hereinafter described was conveyed to the State of Arizona by 

Treasurer's Deed for the non-payment of taxes, which taxes had been legally assessed against, and 
became a lien upon, said property according to law; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, on behalf of the State of Arizona, advertised and 
offered said property for sale to the highest bidder for cash in accordance with A.R.S. §42-18302 and 42-
18303; and 

  
WHEREAS, on the 11th day of May 2017, Grantee did purchase said property for the sum of seven 

hundred sixty-one dollars and thirty cents ($761.30); 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, Grantor does hereby quit-claim to Grantee, 
the following described real property situated in the County of Gila, State of Arizona. 
 

 Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number:  102-31-013-G 
  
 Legal Description: 
 

 BEG SE COR PARCEL “3” ROS 2681; TH N89°55’49”W 20.0’; TH N18°14’29”E 518.92’; TH S22°55’45”E 
49.0’; TH S19°55’9”W 475.25’ POB; NW½ SEC 25 T2S R15E; =0.30 AC.  

  
 Exempt from Affidavit of Property Value pursuant to A.R.S. §11-1134 (A) (3) 

 
 
Grantor:              Attest: 

  
 
_________________________________    ______________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman         Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors        Gila County Board of Supervisors 

             
 
 



 

QCD-Parcel No. 102-31-013-G  Page 2 of 2 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
     ) SS      ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
COUNTY OF GILA    )       

  
 
Before me, Sherry Grice, a Notary Public in and for the County of Gila, State of Arizona, on this ____ day of 
______________  2017, personally appeared Tommie C. Martin, Chairman, Board of Supervisors, Gila 
County, Arizona, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that she executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. 

 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Notary Public 

                 My Commission Expires:  











   
ARF-4346   Consent Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1.

Background Information
On May 26, 2015, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No.
15-05-05 which outlines the policy and procedures for the sale of land
held by the State of Arizona under tax deed.  The procedures allow the
Clerk of the Board to sell these parcels over the counter for the total lien
amount.  A separate $15 fee is required to be paid by the purchaser in
order to record the Quit Claim Deed.  The procedures also state that a
consent agenda action item will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors
on a regular meeting agenda to obtain authorization from the Board for
the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 

Assessor's tax parcel number 208-02-158-B-1 was deeded to the State of
Arizona in 2000 with a lien amount of $420.52.  It did not sell at the
Board of Supervisors' annual tax sale/auction; therefore, it was added to
the list of properties that could be purchased year-round for the total lien
amount.  The subject property is vacant land in off of East Street in Globe.

Evaluation
On May 17, 2017, the Clerk of the Board deposited $420.52 from David
and Bonnie Adams with the Gila County Treasurer for the purchase of the
subject property.  The amount paid was the total lien amount.  A separate
$15 payment was submitted to record the Quit Claim Deed.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on
the Quit Claim Deed for the sale of Assessor's tax parcel number
208-02-158-B-1.  Once the deed has been finalized and recorded, it will
go back on the County's tax rolls.

Recommendation



The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the Chairman's signature on a Quit Claim Deed to finalize the
sale of the subject property to Mr. and Mrs. David Adams.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for the
Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel number
208-02-158-B-1 to David and Bonnie Adams.

Attachments
Quit Claim Deed-Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1
Information on Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1



QCD-Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1                                                                                         Page 1 of 2 

When recorded return to:     
Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 
 

 GILA COUNTY QUIT-CLAIM DEED 
                                                                                                                                                   

THIS QUIT CLAIM DEED made this 23rd day of May 2017, between the State of Arizona, by and 
through the Gila County Board of Supervisors, Grantor, and David G. and Bonnie J. Adams, Grantees.  

 
Address of Grantee:  7220 W. Hearn Road, Peoria, AZ  85381-4732 
 
 RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the real property hereinafter described was conveyed to the State of Arizona by 

Treasurer's Deed for the non-payment of taxes, which taxes had been legally assessed against, and 
became a lien upon, said property according to law; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, on behalf of the State of Arizona, advertised and 
offered said property for sale to the highest bidder for cash in accordance with A.R.S. §42-18302 and 42-
18303; and 

  
WHEREAS, on the 17th day of May 2017, Grantees did purchase said property for the sum of four 

hundred twenty dollars and fifty-two cents ($420.52); 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, Grantor does hereby quit-claim to Grantee, 
the following described real property situated in the County of Gila, State of Arizona. 
 
Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number:  208-02-158-B-1 

  
THE SWLY 37.5’ OF LOT 1-C, BLOCK 30, GLOBE TOWNSITE, APPROX. 0.08 ACRES M/L 

  
 Exempt from Affidavit of Property Value pursuant to A.R.S. §11-1134 (A) (3) 

 
Grantor:            Attest: 

  
 
_________________________________  ______________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman       Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors      Gila County Board of Supervisors 

             
 
 



QCD-Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1                                                                                         Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
     ) SS      ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
COUNTY OF GILA    )       

  
 
Before me, Sherry Grice, a Notary Public in and for the County of Gila, State of Arizona, on this 23rd  day of 
May 2017, personally appeared Tommie C. Martin, Chairman, Board of Supervisors, Gila County, Arizona, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. 

 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Notary Public 

                 My Commission Expires: 









   
ARF-4342   Consent Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library Special Event Liquor License
Application for October 14, 2017.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a
special event for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of
Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) approves all liquor-related
applications; however, part of the DLLC's process requires that the local
governing body review the application and submit a recommendation for
approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment located within
the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the
attached application and has determined that it has been completed
correctly.

Conclusion
This charitable organization properly completed the application.  If the
Board of Supervisors approves this application and final approval is given
by the DLLC, the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona,
will have used 1 day of the allowable 12 events per year.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this application to allow the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public
Library to serve liquor at a fund-raising event to be held at the Isabelle
Hunt Memorial Public Library 6124 N. Randall Place, in Pine, Arizona to
be held on October 14, 2017.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by the



Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by the
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona, to serve liquor at
a fund-raising event on October 14, 2017, at the Library.

Attachments
Special Event Liquor License Application











   
ARF-4336   Consent Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Board of Adjustment Appointments.

Background Information
Travis Williams has resigned from the Gila County Board of Adjustment. 
Bill Marshall has agreed to fulfill Mr. Williams' unexpired term of office
that ends on December 31, 2018.  There is one other vacancy on this
Board for the term of office that began on January 1, 2017, through
December 31, 2020.  Mr. Terry Otts has agreed to serve this term of
office.  Mr. Otts and Mr. Marshall reside in Supervisorial District 2.

Evaluation
The Board of Supervisors needs to appoint Bill Marshall and Terry Otts to
the Gila County Board of Adjustment for the terms of office as specified
(above).

Conclusion
Per statutory requirement, the Board of Supervisors has the authority to
appoint members to the Board of Adjustment.

Recommendation
Supervisor Humphrey recommends that the Board of Supervisors appoint
Bill Marshall and Terry Otts to the Gila County Board of Adjustment.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledge the resignation of Travis Williams from the Gila County
Board of Adjustment; appoint Bill Marshall to fulfill Mr. Williams'
unexpired term of office through December 31, 2018; and appoint Terry
Otts to fill a vacancy for the term of office ending December 31, 2020. 

Attachments



Board of Adjustment Member List



 

 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

(Proposed to the BOS on 5-23-17) 

 

Name of Member & Appointment 
Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Don Ascoli (Resides in District 1) A-District 1 C (04/19/16) 9 years, 5 months 01/01/16-12/31/17 01/01/16-12/31/17 

Mary Lou Myers (Resides in District 1)  A-District 1 C (04/19/16) 3 years, 9 months 01/01/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

Terry Otts (Resides in District 2) A-District 2 A (05/23/17) - 05/23/17-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

Travis Williams (Resides in District 2) A-District 2 C (12/02/14) 8 years, 5 months 01/01/15-12/31/18 
Resigned 

01/01/15-12/31/18 

Bill Marshall (Resides in District 2) A-District 2 B (05/23/17) 
Travis Williams 

- 05/23/17-12/31/18 01/01/15-12/31/18 

Mickie Nye (Resides in District 3) A-District 3 A (12/02/14) - 01/01/15-12/31/18 01/01/15-12/31/18 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  September 8, 1959 
B. Per A.R.S. 11-816 – The Board of Supervisors (BOS) may establish one board of adjustment that has jurisdiction countywide and that is composed of 1 member who is a resident of each 

supervisorial district or one board of adjustment in each supervisorial district that has jurisdiction in that supervisorial district and that is composed of not less than 3 nor more than 5 
members, each of whom is a resident of that supervisorial district.  The members of each board shall be appointed for staggered terms of 4 years each. 

C. The Gila County Zoning Ordinance, Section 106.2 Powers and Duties, addresses the powers of the Board of Adjustment. 
D. The BOS has established 1 Board of Adjustment consisting of 5 members; however, the Board is composed of at least 1 member from each supervisorial district. 

 
2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E.      Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



   
ARF-4325   Consent Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly report for April 2017

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for April 2017

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2017 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly report for April 2017









   
ARF-4327   Consent Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
April 2017

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for April 2017

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2017 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
April 2017



















   
ARF-4343   Consent Agenda Item     4. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Reporting
Period:

May 9, 2017

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board

Information
Subject
May 9, 2017, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 9, 2017, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 05-09-17 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 15 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  May 9, 2017 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY  By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                            Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE                                                  Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin; Chairman (via ITV); Tim R. Humphrey, Vice-
Chairman; Woody Cline, Member; John Nelson, County Manager; Jefferson R. 

Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian E. Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION 
 
Chairman Martin called the regular session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 

the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room. Tim Humphrey led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Pastor Dave Barber of Star Valley Baptist Church delivered the 

invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 

 
A.  Presentation of the 2017 Gila County Teacher of the Year Award 
to Andrew Fiala by Roy A. Sandoval, Gila County School Superintendent.  

 
Mr. Sandoval advised that the Teacher of the Year Program was initiated in 

2011.  He then read aloud the criteria that are considered when selecting a 
teacher for this award.  A teacher may be nominated by other educators, 
administrator, parent or member of the community.  Mr. Fiala currently 

teaches science, introduction to chemistry and physics, and other classes at 
Payson High School.  Mr. Sandoval presented Mr. Fiala with a plaque and 

check in the amount of $500.  Mr. Fiala stated that he feels blessed to be in 
this community and to be recognized for this award. 

 

B.  Presentation of the 2016 Annual Report for the Gila County Sheriff's 
Office.   
 

Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd advised that one of his goals when first being elected 
as Sheriff was to compile an annual report which outlined all of the activities 



Page 2 of 15 

 

within the Sheriff’s Office during the previous year.  He asked Sarah White, 
Chief Administrative Officer, to proceed with the presentation.  Ms. White 

advised that this is the fourth year for the presentation of the Sheriff’s Office 
Annual Report.  Her presentation included a review of the activities and 

statistics of the Administration Bureau; Patrol Bureau; Detention Bureau; 
Communications; Drug, Gang and Violent Crimes Task Force; K-9s in service; 
employee training; volunteer programs; a list of names of military veteran 

employees and volunteers; and community programs and services.  Each Board 
member thanked Sheriff Shepherd and Ms. White for the presentation of the 
2016 Annual Report. 

 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 17-05-04 
granting the renewal of a water services franchise to Arizona Water 

Company for an additional 25 years.   
 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that earlier this year the Board 
of Supervisors adopted a resolution which established guidelines related to 

public utility franchise applications.  She further advised that on April 4, 2017, 
the Board accepted an application from Arizona Water Company to renew its 

franchise with Gila County for an additional 25 years, and authorized the 
publication of a notice to inform the public regarding the Board’s intent to 
grant the franchise on this date.  She informed the Board of the statutory 

requirement to publish the notice in the official County newspaper for 3 
consecutive weeks prior to this meeting, which was done.  Ms. Sheppard stated 

that the application was reviewed by Jefferson Dalton, Chief Deputy County 
Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director; 
and herself.  She acknowledged the efforts of Mr. Dalton and Robert Spear, 

general counsel for Arizona Water Company, for their efforts in developing a 
comprehensive franchise agreement document that will be used today and into 
the future.  Vice-Chairman Humphrey thanked those involved in the 

application review process.  Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 17-

05-04.  (A copy of the resolution is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office and attached to these minutes.) 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a funding request by The 
Industrial Development Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona on behalf 

of the Rim Country Broadband Consortium in the amount of $30,000 that 
will be used toward hiring a broadband consultant who will focus on 
broadband issues in northern Gila County.   

 
Sandy Palmer, Manager of the Industrial Development Authority of the County 
of Gila (IDA), asked Bobby Davis to address the Board.  Mr. Davis advised that 

Kelly Riggs, Gila County Information Technology Director, was not in 



Page 3 of 15 

 

attendance today to present some detailed information with regard to 
broadband.  Mr. Davis advised that the Rim Country Broadband Consortium 

was formed in October 2015 as a result of 3 outages in a period of just over one 
year.  He proceeded to review some of the recent activities of the Consortium to 

provide increased broadband coverage in the Rim County, which is in northern 
Gila County.  He stated that there is a 14 mile stretch of highway that needs to 
be completed so there is broadband coverage; it is on Highway 260 from 

Colcord Road to Forest Lakes. The Consortium has been working with Greg 
Freestat, who has volunteered his time in working on this effort.  Mr. Davis 
stated that the goal is to bridge Century Link to the west and Frontier 

Communications to the east and provide both the resiliency of the networks in 
case of an outage.  The Consortium needs to evaluate the third fiber option 

form State Route 87 to Fountain Hills.  Mr. Davis stated that the Consortium 
has been working for the last one and one-half years with various organizations 
such as Arizona Public Service Company (APS).  The Consortium has also been 

communicating with various legislators to secure funding from the state and 
federal government, and it meets on a regular basis with representatives of 

Apache County and Navajo County.  He advised that the Consortium did not 
apply for a grant through the Arizona Commerce Authority in the amount of 
$250K nor did it apply for a Community Connect Grant in the amount of 

$3.5M through the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural 
Development because the Consortium was unable to provide required key 
information such as infrastructure mapping, equipment inventory, project 

costs and a master design strategy divided into separate phases.  Mr. Davis 
iterated the need to hire a broadband consultant who could spearhead the 

effort to secure funding for the proposed projects.   
 
Supervisor Cline asked Mr. Davis the expected period of time that a consultant 

would be needed and Vice-Chairman Humphrey asked if a call for bids had 
been issued to select a consultant to which Mr. Davis replied that a call for 
bids has not been issued because Jim Sims has been working with him for the 

past one and one-half years as a non-paid consultant.  He stated, “That is not 
to say we would go with him.  Jim has volunteered his time and his money to 

this effort so we would definitely consider him.”  Mr. Davis expects that the 
Consortium would need to hire a consultant for approximately 6 months.  
Chairman Martin commented that the problem is that those involved are 

dealing with a company that would not have a return on its investment.  She 
advised that Vice-Chairman Humphrey will be attending meetings in 

Washington, D.C. in the near future so it would be beneficial if the “story” 
regarding this issue could be told to Congressmen.  Mr. Davis replied that he 
could put together a fact sheet for Vice-Chairman Humphrey to take to 

Washington and for the other Board members.  Cliff Potts, a citizen of Payson, 
is in agreement that there needs to be strong links in and out of the 
community, but he also wants strong links within the community.  James 

(Max) Feezor, a citizen of Payson, commented that he recently attended an 
Arizona Corporation Commission meeting and stated, “Our town was one of the 



Page 4 of 15 

 

huge successes according to Century Link.  They did not improve and they 
robbed everyone else downstream.  During the day my Internet is useless.  It is 

not only the fiber, but it is the structure for handling that we need to have.  
Nothing has been done in 10 years.”   

 
Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, stated, “The 
County Attorney’s Office has not yet received any paperwork to approve, but at 

some point we need to see if there is statutory authority to be involved in this 
area.”  James Menlove, Finance Director, stated, “As long as I have been with 
Gila County there is not an inventory of assets for economic development such 

as good Internet. We are short on that.  As part of this whole process to allocate 
dollars, this is typically included in the budget process to be included for the 

2017-2018 budget.  The IDA should submit a formal request for these dollars 
to be included in the upcoming County budget.  This would be applicable to the 
next agenda item as well.”  Vice-Chairman Humphrey moved to consider this 

funding request during the County’s regular fiscal year 2017-2018 budget 
process, which was seconded by Supervisor Cline and unanimously agreed to 

by the Board.  No Board action was taken on this specific funding request. 
 

C.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a funding request by The 

Industrial Development Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona (IDA) in 
the amount of $50,000 that will be used for administrative costs and 
grant match funding requirements associated with various IDA 

projects/efforts to enhance the health and welfare of Gila County 
citizens.   

 
Ms. Palmer introduced Fred Barcon, Vice-President of the IDA Board of 
Directors.  Mr. Barcon advised that the IDA is committed to expanding 

economic development and business enterprise for Gila County and its primary 
mission is to secure resources.  He advised that historically, the IDA has been 
self-funded; however, those funds are running out, so that is the reason 

funding requests are being presented to the County.  Ms. Palmer proceeded to 
present a brief PowerPoint presentation of the various efforts being made by the 

IDA on proposed projects and grant opportunities that would benefit the 
citizens of Gila County.  At the conclusion of her presentation, Supervisor Cline 
advised that a lot of information had been presented today.  He suggested that 

a future Board work session should be scheduled to begin presenting proposed 
projects; one project at a time.   

 
Vice-Chairman Humphrey moved to consider this funding request during the 
County’s regular fiscal year 2017-2018 budget process, which was seconded by 

Supervisor Cline and unanimously agreed to by the Board.  No Board action 
was taken on this specific funding request. 
 

Chairman Martin thanked Ms. Palmer for the presentation. 
 



Page 5 of 15 

 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. 2017-01 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the 

National Park Service for law enforcement assistance at the Tonto 
National Monument for a performance period of four years after the date 

of final signature.  
 
Sheriff Shepherd advised that this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) was 

previously presented to the Board on April 18, 2017.  The Board voted 
unanimously to table this item to today’s meeting at the Sheriff’s request to 
allow time to correct the legal description contained in the IGA.  Sheriff 

Shepherd advised that his Office was contacted by the Superintendent of the 
Tonto National Monument requesting assistance with law enforcement services 

at the Tonto National Monument.  Currently, the Tonto National Monument 
does not have a law enforcement officer stationed at the Monument. If an 
officer is needed at the Tonto National Monument, he/she would be required to 

come from Montezuma Castle.  He proceeded to provide some information on 
the Tonto National Monument.  Sheriff Shepherd stated, “This agreement 

makes a smooth legal path for us to be out there; not just for criminal activity, 
but also search and rescue or other civil activity.”  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously 

approved IGA No. 2017-01. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 17-05-03 

dissolving the Canyon River Ranch Domestic Water Improvement District 
in accordance with Arizona Revised Statute §48-264.   

 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, stated that this resolution is being presented 
for adoption to dissolve the Canyon River Ranch Domestic Water Improvement 

District to render it as a non-functioning district.  For the record, another 
related resolution was presented to the Board at its April 4, 2017, meeting.  
After discussion, the Board tabled any action on the item to allow Mr. Mariscal 

to gather more information and report back to the Board.  Mr. Mariscal advised 
that since the time he last met with the Board, he consulted with a water 

attorney and did some other research.  He learned that the District could be 
dissolved pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §48-264.   
 

Vice-Chairman Humphrey thanked Mr. Mariscal for all of his work on this item 
and he proceeded to make a motion to adopt Resolution No. 17-05-03, which 

was seconded by Supervisor Cline.  Before the vote was taken, Mr. Dalton 
advised that the motion needed to state that the District is being dissolved 
because of “no future business and no current indebtedness.”  Chairman 

Martin revised the motion to include the added language as stated by Mr. 
Dalton.  Supervisor Cline seconded the motion which was unanimously 
approved by the Board.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in 

the Board of Supervisors’ Office and attached to these minutes.) 
 



Page 6 of 15 

 

 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 

Request for Proposals No. 100616-Pharmacy Services for Gila County 
Detention Medical; award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and 

qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award 
contract for the winning bid.   
 

Mr. Menlove advised that the County had never previously issued a request for 
proposals for prescription and over-the-counter medication.  Two bids were 
submitted in response to Request for Proposals No. 100616.  Ms. White advised 

that providing pharmacy services to the jail inmates is a considerable cost to 
the County.  She recommended that a contract be awarded to Westwood 

Pharmacy, which was the low bidder.  Ms. White added that based on 
Westwood Pharmacy’s price list, the County may save up to 42%.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board 

unanimously awarded a contract to Westwood Pharmacy in response to 
Request for Proposals No. 100616. 

 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Superior Court's 
submission of a fiscal year 2018 Field Trainer Grant Application to the 

Court Services Division, Administrative Office of the Courts, in the 
amount of $25,000. 
 

Jonathan Bearup, Superior Court Administrator, advised that earlier this year 
during budget discussions, the Superior Court agreed to exchange a vacant 

Administrative Assistant position for this Field Trainer position.  He stated that 
the Field Trainer program is a cooperative endeavor between the Administrative 
Office of the Courts (AOC) and County trial courts.  A Field Trainer is a full 

time, co-funded position designed to provide field support and training to 
various courts.  The Field Trainer acts as a liaison with the AOC and delivers 
specific pertinent information to court managers and staff about forthcoming 

automation initiatives and projects.  He added that if this grant is awarded 
along with funds budgeted for this position; it will result in a slight cost savings 

to the County.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by 
Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously approved the Superior Court’s 
submission of the fiscal year 2018 Field Trainer Grant Application to the Court 

Services Division, Administrative Office of the Courts, in the amount of 
$25,000. 

 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 17-05-01 
which authorizes the execution of Amendment No. One to an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) between Gila 
County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for the 
additional 5.7% match totaling $12,331 required for the scoping and 

design phase of the bridge replacement project on Colcord Road over 
Gordon Canyon east of Payson in Gila County.   



Page 7 of 15 

 

Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that previously the 
Board adopted a resolution authorizing the approval of this Intergovernmental 

Agreement to replace the bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon.  Upon 
approval of that agreement, Gila County paid the Arizona Department of 

Transportation (ADOT) $6,054, which was the County’s 5.7% match for the 
scoping and design.  ADOT has since added an additional $204,000 for scoping 
and design.  This additional amount requires a 5.7% Gila County match 

totaling $12,331.  Mr. Sanders believes that this additional scoping and design 
is in the best interest of Gila County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously adopted 

Resolution No. 17-05-01.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office and attached to these minutes.) 

 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 17-05-02 to 
increase the speed limit on Stagecoach Trail and Roosevelt Estates Road 

from 25 MPH to 30 MPH.   
 

Mr. Sanders advised that a citizen requested this speed limit change.  A speed 
study was conducted, and the County’s consultant has concluded that the 
speed may be increased.  In order to implement the change, a resolution needs 

to be adopted by the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, 
seconded by Supervisor Cline, the Board adopted Resolution No. 17-05-02.  (A 
copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 

Office and attached to these minutes.) 
 

J.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Invitation for Bids No. 021517-Copper Region Chip Seal Project; award to 
the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning 
bid.  
 

Mr. Menlove stated that all items related to Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 021517 
went through County procurement procedures and a vendor is being 

recommended according to that process.  Mr. Sanders advised that the County 
received 2 bids to chip seal 2 miles of road.  Pima Paving, Inc. was the low 
bidder at a cost not to exceed $75,700.12.   Per the Time of Completion 

provision in the IFB, work shall be completed within 50 calendar days from the 
commencement date on the Notice to Proceed.  Upon motion by Supervisor 

Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously 
awarded a contract to Pima Paving, Inc. in response to IFB No. 021517. 

 

K.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Invitation for bids No. 021317-1-Timber Region Chip Seal Project; award 
to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning 
bid.  



Page 8 of 15 

 

Mr. Sanders advised that the County received 3 bids to chip seal 16.4 miles of 
road.  Pima Paving, Inc. was the low bidder at a cost not to exceed 

$562,683.71.   Per the Time of Completion provision in the IFB, work shall be 
completed within 60 calendar days from the commencement date on the Notice 

to Proceed.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by 
Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously awarded a contract to Pima Paving, 
Inc. in response to IFB No. 021317-1. 

 
L.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bids No. 042417 for the purchase of bulk fuel and lubricants 

to be used by the Gila County Fleet/Fuel Management Department.   
 

Mr. Sanders advised that the current contract expires on June 23, 2017.  He 
assured the Board that these bid specifications mirror that of previous bid 
specifications for these products except that a few more sites were added so the 

vendor can choose which site to pick up the fuel.  All bids are based on OPIC 
(Oil Price Information Service) pricing guidelines.  Upon motion by Supervisor 

Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously 
authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 042417. 

 

M.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Road Project Agreement 
(FS Agreement No. 17-RO-11031200-016) between Gila County and the 
USDA, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest  for reconstruction of Baker 

Ranch Road using $250,000 of Eastern Arizona Counties Resource 
Advisory Council (RAC) funds.  

 
Mr. Sanders advised that Gila County was granted $250,000 to be used to mill 
and replace approximately 1 mile of Baker Ranch Road pavement.  The project 

will begin at the intersection of Baker Ranch and Zachariae Ranch Road and 
continue west for approximately 1 mile. The total project may cost $400,962 
since the soil must be stabilized prior to laying AB and paving. The balance of 

the contract dollar amount will come from the Gila County Half-Cent 
Transportation Excise Tax Fund.  The Baker Ranch Road Project is not on 

federal land. It is on County ROW (right of way). The guidelines state the 
primary location for projects is on federal land; however, projects can be on 
non-federal lands within Gila County where projects benefit the national 

forests. Baker Ranch Road provides access to thousands of acres of the Tonto 
National Forest.  On August 29, 2016, a Modification of Agreement No. 14-RO-

11031200-030 was signed by the Forest Service approving the Baker Ranch 
Road to be included under the Cooperator Agreement.  Baker Ranch Road is in 
the Young community and the road is listed as a priority #3 in the 2014 Gila 

County Transportation Study. The paving contract will be bid and Mr. Sanders 
stated that Public Works personnel will ensure that the federal guidelines are 
followed for this project. 



Page 9 of 15 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously approved the Road Project Agreement (FS Agreement No. 

17-RO-11031200-016). 

N.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 101-07-020 and, if accepted, 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed.   
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that in 2016, the Gila County 

Treasurer deeded this parcel to the State of Arizona, which is in care of the 
Board of Supervisors.  It was advertised to be sold at the Board’s annual 
property tax sale; however, it was not sold so it is still available for purchase. 

Ms. Sheppard stated that the property address for this parcel is 664 N. Utah 
Avenue, Hayden.  The property contains a foundation and remains of a house 

that was burned to the ground due to arson.  An owner of adjoining property 
has expressed an interest in purchasing this property; however, she is 
requesting to purchase the property for less than the lien amount which is 

$2,690.77 as it will be very costly to remove the remains of the house.  Ms. 
Sheppard stated that the Board previously adopted a resolution which allows 

the Board to waive the requirement to sell the property for no less than the 
total lien amount if a condition warrants selling a parcel at a lesser price.  
Chairman Martin asked Ms. Sheppard to open the sealed envelope, which was 

done.  Ms. Sheppard stated that Rosalinda Lopez submitted a bid in the 
amount of $100 to purchase the subject property.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously 

accepted a bid from Rosalinda Lopez in the amount of $100 for the purchase of 
Assessor’s tax parcel number 101-07-020, and authorized the Chairman’s 

signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 
 

O.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature 

on a comment letter to be submitted to Senator Jeff Flake and included 
in the official record of the Energy and Natural Resources Committee, 

which respectfully requests full funding to the federal Payment in Lieu of 
Taxes (PILT) and Secure Rural Schools (SRS) programs for fiscal year 
2017 and into the future. 

 
Jacque Sanders, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, advised that the letter 
being presented to the Board of Supervisors for signature is to formally request 

the United States Congress to provide full mandatory funding for the PILT and 
SRS programs for counties within which federal lands are located, but are 

unavailable for economic development or taxation, to assist the counties with 
the costs of providing vital services, such as law enforcement, search and 
rescue, emergency services, road construction and maintenance, and other 

community services upon those federal lands.  Ms. Sanders advised that 
Senator Jeff Flake sits on the Energy and Natural Resources Committee which 

recently held a hearing on PILT and SRS. The record for the hearing will remain 



Page 10 of 15 

 

open for two weeks to allow for comments to be received and read into the 
official record. Submitting the letter to Senator Jeff Flake will ensure that the 

position of the Gila County Board of Supervisors will be included in the official 
record of the PILT and SRS hearing.  Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, 

seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously authorized the 
Chairman’s signature on the comment letter that is attached to this agenda 
item. 

 
Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 
the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 

number 301-18-085 to Mark E. Lines.  
 

B.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Civil Rights 
Certification (form HUD-50077-CR), which will be submitted to the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development by the Gila County Public 

Housing Authority (PHA) as it relates to the 5-Year/Annual PHA Plan for 
the Gila County PHA for fiscal year 2017.  

 

C.  Approval of Amendment No. 5 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADES15-089113) between the Arizona Department of 

Economic Security and Gila County Division of Community Services, 
Community Action Program, revising the Itemized Service Budget for 
Case Management and Community Services whereby the cumulative 

reimbursement ceiling has been set to $436,408 for the period of July 1, 
2017, through June 30, 2018.   

 

D.  Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Request for Qualified Vendor 
Agreement No. DDD 710000 between the Arizona Department of 

Economic Security, Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD), and Gila 
County d/b/a Gila County Employment and Special Training Department 
to allow for the continued provision of DDD services to eligible residents 

of Gila County, and remain in compliance with federal and 
state regulations and provisions of the Qualified Vendor Agreement.  

 
E.  Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.  

 
F.  Approval of the April 18, 2017, and April 25, 2017, Board of 
Supervisors' meeting minutes.  

 



Page 11 of 15 

 

G.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
April 4, 2017, April 11, 2017, April 18, 2017, and April 25, 2017.  

 
APRIL 4, 2017 

 

DEPARTURES: 

1. George Hernandez – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior 

– 04/04/17 – Facilities Management Fund – DOH 10/07/02 

 

NEW HIRES: 

2. Raymond Fulton – Sheriff’s Office – PT Special Investigator(.48) – 04/10/17 – 

General Fund – Replacing Howard Shapiro 

3. Christina Hext – Assessor’s Office – Provisional Appraiser – 04/10/17 – 

General Fund – Replacing Mark De Los Reyes 

4. Elsa Bobier – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 04/13/17 

– CAP Fund – Replacing Karla Fandrich 

5. Diana Kanon – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 

04/11/17 – General Fund – Replacing Matthew Greve 

 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

6. Dennis Kroeger – Public Works – Construction Project Manager – 04/10/17 

– Public Works Fund  

7. Rochelle Madrid – Public Works – PT Custodian(.85) – 04/17/17 – Facilities 

Management Fund 

8. Donald Riggins – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 

04/17/17 – Facilities Management Fund 

9. Forrest Bennett – Computer Services – IT Systems Administrator – 03/12/17 

– General Fund  

 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

10. Rebecca Taylor – Public Works – From Custodian – To Custodian Lead – 

04/10/17 – Facilities Management Fund – Replacing Cynthia Gonzales 

 

REQUEST TO POST: 

11. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 

Vacated by Ray Carpenter  

12. Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior – Vacated by 

George Hernandez  

 

APRIL 11, 2017 



Page 12 of 15 

 

 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Patricia Clark – Treasurer’s Office – Temporary Treasurer Services Assistant 

– 05/27/16 – General Fund – DOH 04/20/15 

2. Lacey Mata – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/13/17 – General 

Fund – DOH 01/19/15 

3. Brian Whitney – Health and Emergency Services – Emergency Management 

Communication Coordinator – 04/03/17 – General Fund – DOH 07/20/15 

4. Michael Huckeby – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment 

Operator – 04/13/17 – Public Works Fund – DOH 02/21/17 

 

NEW HIRES: 

5. Robert Hext – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – 

04/17/17 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Justin Newby 

 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 

6. Susan Williams – Globe Justice Court – Temporary Justice Court Clerk – 

04/17/17 – General Fund 

 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

7. W. James Menlove – Finance – Finance Director – 04/30/17 – General Fund  

 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

8. David O’Brien – Public Works – From Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – To 

Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior – 04/17/17 – Public Works Fund – 

Replacing Bruce Tanner 

9. Austin Livingood – Public Works – From Road Maintenance Worker – To 

Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – 04/17/17 – Public Works Fund 

– Replacing Joel McDaniel 

 

REQUEST TO POST: 

10. Public Works – Road Maintenance Worker – Vacated by Austin Livingood 

11. County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – Vacated by Christian 

Leos 

 

APRIL 18, 2017 

 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Roshanda Cody – Library District – Early Literacy Program Coordinator – 

04/21/17 – Library District Grants Fund – DOH 07/01/16 



Page 13 of 15 

 

2. Travis Mills – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/11/17 – General Fund 

– DOH 02/13/17 

 

NEW HIRES: 

3. Rachel Wright – Clerk of Superior Court – Part-Time Court Clerk – 04/24/17 

– General Fund – Replacing Rachel Wright 

 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

4. Nicholas Montague – School Superintendent’s Office – Chief Deputy School 

Superintendent – 04/18/17 – General Fund 

5. Shealene Loya – Recorder’s Office – Office Supervisor – 05/22/17 – General 

Fund  

6. Christine Lopez – School Superintendent’s Office – Administrative Assistant 

– 05/15/17 – General Fund 

7. Emily Leverance – Superior Court – CASA Coordinator – 05/02/17 – CASA 

Fund 

8. Charlotte Williams - Recorder’s Office – Chief Deputy Recorder – 04/30/17 – 

General Fund 

 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

9. Scott Warren – Public Works – From Land Surveyor – To Survey Supervisor – 

04/24/17 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Kenneth Doss 

REQUEST TO POST: 

10. Public Works – Fleet and Fuel Supervisor – Vacated by John Root 

11. Public Works – Land Surveyor – Vacated by Scott Warren 

12. Library District – Early Literacy Program Coordinator – Vacated by 

Roshanda Cody 

13. Health and Emergency Services – Emergency Management Coordinator – 

Vacated by B. Todd Whitney 

 

APRIL 25, 2017 

 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Ronald Hanse – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 05/22/17 – General Fund 

– DOH 12/10/12 

2. Eoghan Miller – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 

04/28/17 – General Fund – DOH 04/04/16 

3. Christian Leos – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 

04/14/17 – Diversion Program CA Fund – DOH 11/04/13 

 



Page 14 of 15 

 

NEW HIRES: 

4. Nicole Pena – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 05/01/17 – 

Diversion Program CA Fund – Replacing Christian Leos 

5. Craig Raymond – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 

05/01/17 – General Fund – Replacing Eoghan Miller 

 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

6. Mark Brooks – Public Works – From Lube Specialist – To Vehicle and 

Equipment Mechanic – 05/01/17 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Merle Ray 

7. Kateri Thompson – Library District – From Early Literacy Community Liaison 

– To Early Literacy Community Liaison/Program Coordinator – 05/01/17 – 

Library District Grants Fund – Replacing Roshanda Cody 

8. Bret McDaniel – From Probation – To Sheriff’s Office – From Juvenile 

Detention Officer – To Detention Officer – 05/01/17 – General Fund – 

Replacing Travis Mills 

 

REQUEST TO POST: 

9. Community Development – Code Enforcement Specialist Senior – Vacated by 

Margarita Chapman 

10. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – Vacated by Mark 

Brooks 

 
H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the period 

beginning March 29, 2017, to April 24, 2017.  
 
Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 282860 through 282963, 282965 through 283206, and 283208 

through 283337, totaling $3,413,567.74 for the period 3-29-17 through 4-24-

17.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants are permanently attached 

to these minutes.) 

 

I.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the week of April 3, 2017, through 
April 7, 2017.  



Page 15 of 15 

 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 

Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action items 4A through 4I. 
 

Item 5 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 

may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 

matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 
 

There were no comments at this time. 
 

Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on information presented. 
 
Each Supervisor and John Nelson, County Manager, presented a summary of 

current events. 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 11:59 a.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 

Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-4328   Consent Agenda Item     4. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for Weeks Ending 04-14-17 and 04-21-17 and
04-28-17.

Submitted For: James Menlove, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 04-14-17 and 04-21-17 and 04-28-17.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of April 10, 2017, through April
April 14, 2017; and April 17, 2017, through April 21, 2017; and April 24,
2017 through April 28, 2017.

Attachments
Under 50K Contracts for weeks ending 4-14-17, 4/21/17, and
4-28-17
Contract No. 13412 with Stanley Security Solutions
Amendment No. 1 to Contract ADSPO16-5912
Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 031313
Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 031313-1
Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 031915
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 030915-2
Service Agreement No. 032217
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 030915
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 122816
S.A.V.E. Contract No. 161393 with Empire Machinery
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 013015-1
Service Agreement No. 040517 with Acoustical Consulting Services





 

 
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
April 10, 2017 thru April 14, 2017 

 Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
2  

Stanley Security 
 

 

 
Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement with City of 

Avondale 
 Contract No. 13412 

 
Gate with Weatherproof 

Intercom for Dispatch 
Center 

 
$ 7,527.36 

 
04-11-17 to 06-30-17 

 
04-13-17 

 
Expires 

 
Gila County has an iron gate on the exterior of the 
911 Dispatch building that they would like to put 
access control on. It exposes an entry point into 
the building that is employees only and also 
creates a discrete hiding place for nefarious 
activities. 

3  
Western 

Technologies, Inc. 

 

 
Using State Contract  
ADSPO16-00005912 

 
Amendment No. 1 
Building Asbestos 

Testing for 1st Floor 
Globe Courthouse 

 

 
$186.00  new 

contract 
amount 

$2,120.97 
 

 
04-03-17 to 04-02-18 

 
04-13-17 

 
Expires 

Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase the 
contract dollar amount by $186.00 to cover a 
“Rush” plus some extra testing is needed.  Gila 
County wishes to utilize Western Technologies Inc. 
for testing for the presence of asbestos on the 1st 
floor of the Courthouse.  Western Technologies 
will provide an estimate of costs to conduct a 
survey to identify, quantify, map and sample 
suspect asbestos containing building materials. 
The areas to be tested are any areas composed of 
drywall. All documents executed by the State of 
Arizona on Contract No. ADSPO16-00005912 
apply to this procurement between Gila County 
and Western Technologies Inc. This testing must 
be completed before SD Crane can start the 1st 
Floor Globe Courthouse Project. 
 
 

  



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

April 17, 2017 thru April 21, 2017 

 Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
4  

Tim’s Tires, LLC 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 

Service Agreement No. 
031313 

 
Extend contract term 

 

 
$5,000.00 

 

 
05-01-17 to 04-30-18 

 
04-17-17 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will provide tire repairs on the heavy 
equipment that is used for road repairs in the 
Payson area. Amendment No. 3 will extend the 
term of the contract for one additional year from 
05-01-17 to 04-30-18. 
 

5  
Tim’s Tires, LLC 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 

Service Agreement No. 
031313-1 

 
Service Agreement No. 

031313-1 

 

 
$4,000.00 

 
05-01-17 to 04-30-18 

 
04-17-17 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 3 will extend the term of the 
contract for one additional year from 04-25-17 to 
04-24-18. Contractor will provide tire repairs on 
the heavy equipment that is used in the Buckhead 
Landfill in Payson, AZ. 

6  
Earthquest Plumbing, 

Inc 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 

Service Agreement No. 
031915 

 
Extend contract for an 

additional one year 
period. 

 
 

 
$4,000.00 

 

 
05-06-17 to 05-05-18 

 
04-17-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 3 has been issued to extend the 
term of the agreement from May 06, 2017 to May 
05, 2018. County maintenance does not always 
have the expertise to handle plumbing repairs or 
emergencies. Contractor will handle plumbing 
issues in the Copper Region. This would include 
indoor, outdoor plumbing and septic service. 

7  
Burden Electric, LLC  

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
031915-2 

 
Extend contract for an 

additional one year 
period. 

 

 
$ 2,000.00 

 
04-28-17 to 04-27-18 

 
04-17-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to extend the 
term of the agreement from April 28, 2017 to April 
27, 2018. At times Facilities needs an Electrical 
Contractor to make repairs in County owned or 
leased buildings when necessary. 

  



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

April 24, 2017 thru April 28, 2017 

 Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
8  

Premier Collision 
Center 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

032217 
 

Body Work and Repairs 
Vehicle B-236 

 

 
$1,167.86 

 

 
03-16-17 to 03-15-18 

 
60 days 

after 
contract 

execution 

 
Expires 

 
Body work and repairs for vehicle B-236, due to 
accident damage, as a result from hitting a horse. 

9  
AM Jackson Electric, 

Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
030915 

 
Electrical repairs in 

County owned or leased 
buildings 

 

 
$2,000.00 

 

 
05-06-17 to 05-05-18 

 
04-27-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to extend the 
agreement from May 6, 2017 to May 5, 2018. At 
times Facilities needs an Electrical Contractor to 
make repairs in County owned or leased buildings 
when necessary. 

10  
McSpadden Ford 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 
Contract No. 122816 

 
One New Prisoner 

Transport Van with 
Insert 

 

 
$4,407.25 new 

contract 
amount of 
$47,697.73 

 

 
Upon County receipt of 

vehicle 

 
04-27-17 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase the 
contract amount by $4,407.73 to cover additional 
equipment requested by the Sheriff’s Office. The 
jail transport van C-51 was scheduled to be 
replaced. Sheriff’s Office requested new 
specifications for safety of personnel and 
prisoners. Finance created an IFB that was 
approved to advertise by the Board on 1/24/17/ 
The bids were due February 14, 2017 and 3 were 
received. After carefully reviewing through each 
bid it was decided to award McSpadden Ford with 
the 2017 Ford Transit, with LSH, Aluminum 
Compartment Insert for the most favorable 
vehicle. 

  



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

April 24, 2017 thru April 28, 2017 

 Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
11  

Empire Machinery 

 

 
S.A.V.E. Contract No. 

161393 
 

Diagnostic and Repair 

 

 
$49,000.00 

 

 
04-27-17 to 06-30-17 

 
04-27-17 

 
Expires 

The Compactor is having stalling issues and losing 
power. The Globe Shop has made several attempts 
to diagnose the problem, but personnel does not 
have the expertise on the new electrical system. 
This machine is very expensive to transport so we 
are requesting the mechanic to come to the 
Landfill at 5891 E. Hope Lane, Globe, AZ, to 
perform the repairs. 

12  
Earthquest 

Plumbing, Inc. 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
013015-1 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

extend term 
 

 
$5,000.00 

 

 
03-11-17 to 03-10-18 

 
04-27-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 will serve to extend the term of 
the agreement from March 11, 2017 to March 10, 
2018. Contractor will provide annual backflow 
inspections, testing and repairs as needed at 15 
County Facilities in Southern Gila County. 

13  
Acoustical 

Consulting Services 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

040517 
 

Acoustical Services 

 

 
$ 950.00 

 
04-27-17 to 06-30-18-7 

 
04-27-17 

 
Expires 

 
To determine if the noise level created by the 
production of ice by Pine Ice is a nuisance as 
defined in the Gila County Zoning Ordinance. 

 










































































	Agenda
	Presentation of a Recognition Award to Dennis Davis
	Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County Sheriff's Office and Graham County Sheriff's Office for emergency 9-1-1 call management in the event o
	Att1_IGA-Gila County Sheriff's Office and Graham County Sheriff's Office
	Att2_Approval as to Form
	Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety FFY 2018 DUI Overtime Grant Application 
	Att1_FFY2018 DUI_ImpairedDriving Enforcement Overtime Grant Application
	Att2_Quarterly Overtime Schedule
	Governor's Office of Highway Safety FFY 2018 Speed Enforcement Grant Application 
	Att1_Resolution No. 17-05-05
	Att2_Resolution Certification 
	Att3_FFY2018 GOHS Speed Enforcement Grant Application
	Att4_Quote
	Att5_County Attorney's Comments
	Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety Portable Breath Testing Device (PBT) Grant Application 
	Att1_FFY 2018 Portable Breath Test Devices Grant Application
	Att2_Quote
	FY2018 Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Application 
	Att1_Grant Application 
	Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County Justice Center to House and Treat Detained Juveniles
	Att1_IGA with Pinal County Justice Center
	Amendment No. 6 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1-Messinger Mortuary & Chapel, Inc.
	Att1_Amendment No. 6 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
	Att2_Amendment No. 5 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
	Att3_Amendment No. 4 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
	Att4_Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
	Att5_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
	Att6_Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 022514-1
	Att7_Services Agreement No. 022514-1 with Messinger Mortuary
	Proposed Revisios to Public Works Division Policy No. ENG 03-03 _ Guidelines to Primitive Roads
	Att1_ENG 03-03 Changes in Red
	Att2_ENG 03-03 Guidelines to Primitive Raods
	DIVISION OF PUBLIC WORKS

	Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5
	Att1_Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5
	Att3_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-5
	Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Parcel No. 102-31-013-G
	Att1_Quit Claim Deed-Parcel No. 102-31-013-G
	Att2_Information on Parcel No. 102-31-013-G
	Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1
	Att1_Quit Claim Deed-Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1
	Att2_Information on Parcel No. 208-02-158-B-1
	Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library Special Event Liquor License Application
	Att1_Special Event Liquor License Application
	Gila County Board of Adjustment Appointments
	Att1_Board of Adjustment Member List
	Monthly report for April 2017
	Att1_Monthly report for April 2017
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for April 2017
	Att1_April 2017
	May 9, 2017
	Att1_BOS 05-09-17 Meeting Minutes
	Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 04-14-17 and 04-21-17 and 04-28-17.
	Att1_Under 50K Contracts for weeks ending 4-14-17, 4_21_17, and 4-28-17
	Att2_Contract No. 13412 with Stanley Security Solutions
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 to Contract ADSPO16-5912
	Att4_Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 031313
	Att5_Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 031313-1
	Att6_Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 031915
	Att7_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 030915-2
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 032217
	Att9_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 030915
	Att10_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 122816
	Att11_S.A.V.E. Contract No. 161393 with Empire Machinery
	Att12_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 013015-1
	Att13_Service Agreement No. 040517 with Acoustical Consulting Services

